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Independent Auditor Report

AM/ 010932

To the Shareholders

Bank Al Etihad

(A Public Shareholding Limited Company)
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bank Al Etihad (A Public
Shareholding Limited Company) "The Bank” and its subsidiaries (“The Group”), which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of December 31, 2021, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in owners’ equity, consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Bank as of December 31, 2021,
and its consolidated financial performance and its cash flows for the year in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the Central Bank of Jordan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Jordan, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matter

The accompanying consolidated financial statement are a translation of the original
consolidated financial statements, which are in the Arabic language, to which reference should
be made.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements

as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond
to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in

that context:

Key Audit Matters

Scope of Audit to Address the Risks

1. Impairment of carrying value of the
credit facilities and financing as per
IFRS 9
The Bank’'s direct credit facilites and
financing are stated space in the
statement of financial position at around
JD 3,35 billion as at December 31, 2021.
The expected credit loss (ECL)
allowance was around JD 141,5 million
as at this date, which comprised an
allowance of around JD 57,1 million
against Stage 1 and 2 exposures and an
allowance of around JD 84,4 million
against exposures classified under
Stage 3.

The audit of the impairment of credit
facilities and financing is a key area of
focus because of  their size
(representing 53.5% of total assets)
and due to the significance of the
estimates and judgments used in
classifying credit facilities and financing
into various stages, and determining
related allowance requirements and the
complexity of the judgements,
assumptions, and estimates used in the
Expected Credit Loss models. Refer to
Note (2) to the consolidated financial
statements for the accounting policy,
Note (4) for critical judgements and
estimates used by management, and
Nolt(e (44) for disclosures about credit
risk.

We obtained a detailed understanding of the
Bank's credit facilities and financing,
investing assets business processes, and the
accounting policies on the adoption of IFRS
(9), including the critical accounting
estimates and judgments used. We have
involved our subject matter experts to assist
us in auditing the IFRS (9) ECL models as at
December 31, 2021.

We tested the design, implementation, and
operating effectiveness of the relevant
controls which included testing:

e System-based and manual controls over
the timely recognition of impaired credit
facilities and financing and investing
assets and advances;

e Controls over the ECL -calculation
models;

e Controls over collateral valuation
estimates;

e Controls over governance and approval
process related to impairment provisions
and ECL Models, including continuous
reassessment by the management.
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Key Audit Matters

Scope of Audit to Address the Risks

The Group recognizes allowances for
expected credit losses (ECLs) at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL (Stage
1) or full lifetime ECL (Stage 2). A loss
allowance for full lifetime ECL is required
for a financial instrument if the credit
risk on that financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial
recognition. It is compared to the ECL
amount calculated according to the
instructions of the Central Bank of
Jordan, and the higher of the two
amounts is recorded after excluding
credit exposures with/guaranteed by the
Jordanian government, or any other
special arrangements with the Central
Bank of Jordan.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate
of the present value of credit losses.
These are measured as the present value
of the difference between the cash flows
due to the Bank under the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive arising from the weighting of
multiple future economic scenarios,
discounted at the asset’s effective profit
rate. The Bank employs statistical models
for ECL calculations, and the key
variables used in these calculations are
probability of default (PD), loss given
default (LGD), and exposure at default
(EAD), which are defined in Note (44) to
the consolidated financial statements.

The Corporate portfolio of credit facilities
and financing and Investing assets is
assessed individually for the significant
increase in credit risk (SICR) and
measurement of ECL. This requires
management to capture all qualitative
and quantitative reasonable and
supportable forward-looking information
while assessing SICR, or while assessing
credit-impaired criteria for the exposure.
Management’'s judgement may also be
involved in manual staging override as
per the Group's policies.

The measurement of ECL amounts for
retail exposures classified as Stage 1 and
Stage 2 are calculated using models with
limited manual intervention. Retail
exposures are classified as impaired as
soon as there is doubt about the
borrower’s ability to meet payment
obligations to the Bank in accordance
with the original contractual terms.

Understood and evaluated the theoretical
soundness of the ECL model by involving our
subject matter experts to ensure its
compliance with the minimum requirements
of the standard. We also tested the
mathematical integrity of the ECL model by
performing recalculations. It is compared to
the ECL amount calculated according to the
instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan,
and the higher of the two amounts is
recorded after excluding credit exposures
with/guaranteed by the Jordanian
government, or any other special
arrangements with the Central Bank of
Jordan. We assessed the consistency of
various inputs and assumptions used by the
Group’s management to determine
impairment.

For allowances against exposures classified
as Stage 1 and Stage 2, we obtained an
understanding of the Bank’s methodology to
determine the allowance, assessed the
reasonableness of the underlying
assumptions and the sufficiency of the data
used by the management. We assessed the
appropriateness of the Bank's determination
of significant increase in credit risk and the
resultant basis for classification of exposures
into various stages. For samples of
exposures, we checked the appropriateness
of the Bank's staging.

For forward-looking assumptions used by the
Bank’s management in its ECL calculations,
we held discussions with management and
corroborated the assumptions using publicly
available information.

We selected samples of credit facilities and
financing and investing assets and assessed
the accuracy of the Exposure at Default
(EAD), appropriateness of the Probability of
Default FPD? and calculations of the Loss
Given Default (LGD) used by management in
their ECL calculations.

For exposures determined to be individually
impaired, we tested samples of credit
facilities and financing and investing assets,
and examined management’s estimate of

future cash flows, assessed their
reasonableness and assessed the resultant
allowance calculations. Further, we

challenged the estimates and assumptions
used by management around the LGD
calculation for individually impaired
exposures by testing the enforceability and
adequacy of valuation of underlying
collaterals and estimated recovery on
default.
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Key Audit Matters

Scope of Audit to Address the Risks

Impaired credit facilities and financing
are measured on the basis of the
present value of expected future cash
flows including observable market price
or fair value of the collateral. The
impairment loss is calculated based on
the shortfall in the credit facilities
carrying value compared to the net
present value of future cash flows using
the original effective profit rate after
comparing it with the ECL amount
calculated according to the instructions
of the Central Bank of Jordan and
recording the higher of the two
amounts, excluding credit exposures
with/guaranteed by the Jordanian
government, and any other special
arrangements with the Central Bank of
Jordan. The factors considered when
determining impairment losses on
individually assessed accounts include
the customer's aggregate borrowings,
risk rating, value of the collateral,
probability of successful repossession,
and the costs involved to recover the
debts.

As disclosed in Note (51) the COVID-19
pandemic significantly impacted
management’s determination of the ECL
and required the application of
heightened judgment. To address the
uncertainties inherent in the current and
future environment and to reflect all
relevant risk factors not captured in the
Bank’s modelled results, management
applied quantitative and qualitative
adjustments for the impacts of the
unprecedented macroeconomic scenarios
arising from the pandemic, the temporary
effects of the bank and government led
payment support programs, which may
not completely mitigate future losses, and
the impacts to particularly vulnerable
sectors affected by COVID-19.

The Bank made amendments to the
expected credit loss calculation models
(including management overlays) to take
into consideration the potential impact of
the COVID 19 pandemic to address the
impact on certain sectors or specific
customers based on relative cash flow
forecasts.

We also, assessed the accuracy of
disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements to determine if they were in
compliance with the requirements of IFRSs.

We obtained an understanding of the
amendments made by the Bank to the
expected credit losses impacted by the
COVID-19 pandemic. We assessed those
amendments by evaluating the model
adjustments in relation to macroeconomic
factors and forward-looking scenarios, which
were Iincorporated into the impairment
calculations, by utilizing our internal
specialists to challenge the chosen scenarios
?nd weights applied to capture non-linear
osses.

We determined if the amount recorded as
the allowance for expected credit losses was
determined in accordance with the
instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan.

We have tested, utilizing our internal IT
specialists, the IT application used in the
credit impairment process and have verified
the integrity of data used as input to the
models, including the transfer of data
between source systems and the impairment
models. We have evaluated system-based
and manual controls over the recognition
and measurement of the allowance for
expected credit loss, including the
consideration of the economic disruptions
caused by COVID 19.
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Key Audit Matters

Scope of Audit to Address the Risks

2. IT systems and controls over

financial reporting

We identified IT systems and controls
over the Bank’s financial reporting as an
area of focus due to the extensive
volume and variety of transactions which
are processed daily by the Bank and rely
on the effective operation of automated
and IT dependent manual controls. There
is a risk that automated accounting
procedures and related internal controls
are not accurately designed and
operating effectively. In particular, the
incorporated  relevant controls are
essential to limit the potential for fraud

Our audit approach relies on automated
controls, an therefore, the following
procedures were designed to test access and
control over IT systems.

We tested IT general controls relevant to
automated controls and computer-generated
information covering access security,
program changes, data center and network
operations.

We obtained an understanding of the
applications relevant to financial reporting

and error as a result of change to an and the infrastructure supporting these
application or underlying data. applications.
We examined computer-generated

information used in financial reports from
relevant applications and key controls over
their report logics.

We performed testing on the key automated
controls on significant IT systems relevant to
business processes.

Other Information

Management is responsible for other information. The other information consists of information
provided in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and the related
auditor's report. We expect that the annual report will be provided to us after the date of our
report. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not include the other
information, and we do not express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities _of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the Central Bank of Jordan, and
for such internal control as management determines necessary to enable the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
S0.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank'’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonabgr be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than the one
resulting from error, as fraud may Iinvolve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control. '

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank
to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

s Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the consolidated financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group (*The Bank and its subsidiaries”) to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and implementation of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding Iindependence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period, and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report,
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the

adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The Bank maintains proper books of accounts, which are in agreement with the consolidated financial
statements. We recommend that the General Assembly of Shareholders approve these consolidated
financial statements.

'
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BANK AL ETIHAD
(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

AMMAN - THE HASHEMITE KINGDOM OF JORDAN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Assets:

Cash and balances at the Central Bank of Jordan
Balances at banks and financial institutions

Deposits at banks and financial institutions

December 31,

Financial assets at fair value through statement of profit or loss

Direct credit facilities and financing - net

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets at amortized cost
Investments in associates
Property and equipment - net
Deferred tax assets
Right of use assets
Intangible assets - net
Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND OWNERS' EQUITY:
LIABILITIES:

Banks' and financial institutions' deposits
Customers’ deposits
Cash margins
Borrowed funds
Subordinated loans
Sundry provisions
Leasing liabilities
Income tax provision
Deferred tax liability
Other liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

OWNERS' EQUITY:
BANK’S SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Authorized and paid-up capital

Share premium

Statutory reserve
Voluntary reserve
Fair value reserve

Retained earnings

TOTAL BANK'S SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Non-controlling interests
TOTAL OWNERS' EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNERS' EQUITY

Note 2021 2020

D D
5 934,430,468 721,060,432
6 541,476,707 397,084,528
7 8,770,685 4,448,457
8 18,296,366 15,219,896
9 3,351,124,328 2,951,628,133
10 44,159,121 31,654,110
11 1,099,096,231 904,003,434
12 343,708 349,507
13 66,425,046 68,782,265
21/b 27,747,673 25,590,727
43 27,555,989 27,031,520
14 27,451,684 27,046,436
15 115,643,211 99,743,804
6,262,521,217 5,273,643,249
16 316,782,838 280,688,045
17 4,910,374,102 4,003,010,992
18 244,827,786 251,302,459
19/a 108,566,531 90,152,003
19/b 21,300,000 21,300,000
20 858,903 1,333,898
43 27,366,812 26,453,949
21/a 21,931,794 24,618,987
21/b 161,769 -
22 80,883,165 68,379,574
5,733,053,700 4,767,239,907
23 160,000,000 160,000,000
23 80,213,173 80,213,173
24 68,169,340 61,004,473
24 46,167,117 41,829,012
26 1,741,270 (2,609,036)
27 71,721,054 67,518,099
428,011,954 407,955,721
101,455,563 98,447,621
529,467,517 506,403,342

6,262,521,217

5,273,643,249

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES FROM (1) TO (52) CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM AND WITH THE AUDIT REPORT.



BANK AL ETIHAD
(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

AMMAN - THE HASHEMITE KINGDOM OF JORDAN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Interest income and returns

Interest and debit expenses

Net Interest Income and Returns

Net commission income

Net interest, returns and commission income

Gain from foreign currencies

Gain from financial assets at fair value through statement of profit or loss
Net gain from sale of financial assets at amortized costs

Dividends from financial assets at rair value through other comprenensive
income

Other income

Total Income

Employees’ expenses

Depreciation and amortization

Other expenses

Right-of-use assets depreciation

Rent expense

Financing costs

Allowance for expected credit loss

Provision (surplus) in impairment of seized assets

(Surplus) Sundry provisions expense
Total Expenses

Profit from operations

Bank's share from associates profits
Profit for the year before tax

Income tax expense

Profit for the Year

Attributable to:
Bank's Shareholders

Non-Controlling Interests

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the period
attributable to the Bank's Shareholders

For the Year Ended December 31,

Note 2021 2020
D D
30 261,400,698 253,496,049
31 104,197,790 102,662,234
157,202,908 150,833,815
32 26,002,840 22,413,261
183,205,748 173,247,076
33 6,840,488 6,750,040
34 2,141,994 2,334,837
758,949 108,872
35 469,491 619,013
36 2,159,068 1,456,600
195,575,738 184,516,438
37 48,751,704 44,157,399
13 & 14 14,591,384 14,163,978
38 31,643,398 33,433,775
43 3,819,862 3,845,366
43 463,109 402,380
43 1,027,420 984,241
28 28,892,263 40,175,434
15 1,678,632 (18,297)
20 (474,995) 470,862
130,392,777 137,615,138
65,182,961 46,901,300
12 451 5,485
65,183,412 46,906,785
21/a (23,758,117) (16,862,741)
41,425,295 30,044,044
32,499,895 23,567,470
8,925,400 6,476,574
41,425,295 30,044,044
D/ FILS D/ FILS
39 -/203 -/147

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES FROM (1) TO (52) CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM AND WITH THE AUDIT REPORT.



BANK AL ETIHAD

(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
AMMAN - THE HASHEMITE KINGDOM OF JORDAN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Profit for the Year

Comprehensive income items

Items not reclassifiable to profit or loss in the subsequent period

For the Year Ended December 31,

Net change in fair value reserve after tax

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

Attributable to:
Bank's Shareholders

Non-Controlling Interests

2021 2020

D D
41,425,295 30,044,044
4,350,306 (2,981,449)
45,775,601 27,062,595
36,850,201 20,586,021

8,925,400 6,476,574
45,775,601 27,062,595

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES FROM (1) TO (52) CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART

OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE

READ WITH THEM AND WITH THE AUDIT REPORT.



BANK AL ETIHAD

A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

AMMAN - THE HASHEMITE KINGDOM OF JORDAN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN OWNERS' EQUITY

Total Total
Authorized paid-up Reserves Retained Shareholder's Non-Controlling Owners'
Notes Capital Share Premium Statutory Voluntary Fair Value Earnings * Equity Interests Equity
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 D D D D D D D D D
Beginning balance for the year 160,000,000 80,213,173 61,004,473 41,829,012 (2,609,036) 67,518,099 407,955,721 98,447,621 506,403,342
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 4,350,306 32,499,895 36,850,201 8,925,400 45,775,601
Transferred to reserve - - 7,164,867 4,338,105 - (11,502,972) - - -
Dividends - - - - - (16,000,000) (16,000,000) (3,727,785) (19,727,785)
Net change in non-controlling interests as a result of the increase in shares of a sub: 2 - - - - - (368,477) (368,477) (2,189,673) (2,558,150)
Realized gain from sale financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income - - - - - (425,491) (425,491) - (425,491)
Ending Balance for the Year 160,000,000 80,213,173 68,169,340 46,167,117 1,741,270 71,721,054 428,011,954 101,455,563 529,467,517
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
Beginning balance for the year 160,000,000 80,213,173 56,257,522 38,833,125 372,413 51,596,833 387,273,066 91,971,047 479,244,113
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - (2,981,449) 23,567,470 20,586,021 6,476,574 27,062,595
Transferred to reserve - - 4,746,951 2,995,887 - (7,742,838) - - -
Realized gain from sale financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income - - - - - 96,634 96,634 - 96,634
Ending Balance for the Year 160,000,000 80,213,173 61,004,473 41,829,012 (2,609,036) 67,518,099 407,955,721 98,447,621 506,403,342

* A restricted balance from the retained earnings which amounted to JD 27,326,810 as of December 31, 2021 (JD 23,236,111 as of December 31, 2020), represents deferred tax asset and according to the Central Bank of Jordan, these amounts can't

be used unless a prior approval is obtained.

* Retained earnings balance includes an amount of JD 3,106,174 which represents unrealized gain from revaluation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

- It is forbidden to use the excess from the personal financial risk reserve balance and the amount of JD 108,397 transferred to retained earnings as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 that belongs to Safwa Islamic Bank without the Central Bank of Jordan's prior approval.

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES FROM (1) TO (52) CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM AND WITH THE AUDIT REPORT.
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BANK AL ETIHAD
(LA PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
AMMAN - THE HASHEMITE KINGDOM OF JORDAN
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended December 31,

Note 2021 2020

Operating Activities D D
Profit before income tax 65,183,412 46,906,785
Adjustments for non-cash items
Depreciation and amortization 13 & 14 14,591,384 14,163,978
Provision for expected credit loss 28 28,892,263 40,175,434
Right-of-use assets depreciation 43 3,819,862 3,845,366
Interest from leasing liabilities 43 1,027,420 984,241
(Gain) from sale financial assets amortized cost 11 (758,949) (108,872)
Provision (surplus) for impairment in seized assets 15 1,678,632 (18,297)
Unrealized (gains) loss from financial assets 34 (851,352) 67,097
Loss from sale of property and equipment 38 24,934 202,170
(Gain) loss from the valuation of transferred loans (9,553) 3,455
Sundry provisions - net 20 (474,995) 470,862
Bank's share from (profit) associate company 12 (451) (5,485)
Losses from sale of seized assets against debts 38 73,659 26,280
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents 33 (1,796,735) (3,079,791)

Profit before changes in assets and liabilities 111,399,531 103,633,223
CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Increase) in restricted cash balances (2,447) (688,554)
(Increase) decrease in financial assets at fair value through statement of profit or loss (2,225,118) 1,248,625
(Increase) in banks and financial institutions' deposits with maturity exceeding 3 months (4,322,868) (1,449,068)
Increase (decrease) in deposits at banks and financial institutions with maturity exceeding 3 months 29,000,000 (20,983,000)
(Increase) in direct credit facilities and financing (427,140,073) (353,448,874)
(Increase) in other assets (17,642,144) (4,443,952)
Increase in customers' deposits 907,363,110 427,043,531
(Decrease) increase in cash margins (6,474,673) 65,604,435
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 11,876,176 (10,330,959)

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities Before Tax and Provisions Paid 601,831,494 206,185,407
Income tax paid 21/a (30,374,240) (25,200,592)
Sundry provisions paid 20 - (67,188)

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Investing Activities
(Purchase) of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Matured financial assets at amortized cost 11
(Purchase) of financial assets at amortized cost 11
(Purchase) of property and equipment and payments for purchase of property

and equipment 13
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 13
(Increase) in intangible assets 14
Cash dividends collected from an associate 12

Net Cash flows (used in) Investing Activities

Financing Activities
Dividends distributed to shareholders

Increase in borrowings

increase in subordinated loans 19/b
Payments of lease liability 43
Repayment of part of lease liability interest 43

Net change in non-controlling interests as a result of the increase in the ownership of a subsidiary

Net Cash Flows (used in) from Financing Activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalent
Effect of the change in exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents 33
Cash and cash equivalents - Beginning of the year

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of the Year 40

571,457,254

180,917,627

(6,646,443) (2,899,138)
203,587,969 122,138,008
(398,076,566)  (260,423,887)

(6,313,532) (6,050,867)
76,889 31,078
(6,427,704) (7,626,586)
6,250 10,000

(213,793,137) _ (154,821,392)

(19,822,937) (29,513)
18,414,528 24,982,098
- 21,300,000
(4,160,929) (4,036,550)
(297,959) (304,256)
(2,558,150) -
(8,425,447) 41,911,779
349,238,670 68,008,014
1,796,735 3,079,791
854,690,830 783,603,025

1,205,726,235

854,690,830

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES FROM (1) TO (52) CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM AND WITH THE AUDIT REPORT.
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BANK AL ETIHAD
(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
AMMAN - THE HASHEMITE KINGDOM OF JORDAN
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

Bank Al Etihad is a public shareholding company incorporated in Jordan during 1978, in
accordance with the Companies Law No (12) of (1964). Its main branch is located in
Amman, and the Company was transformed into a bank during the year 1991.

The Bank provides its financial and banking services through its main branch located in
Amman and through its (57) branches and its subsidiaries in Jordan.

The Bank’s shares are listed and traded on Amman Stock Exchange - Jordan.

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on
February 17, 2022 and are subject to approval by the General Assembly of Shareholders.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statement

The accompanying consolidated financial statement of the Bank and its subsidiaries have
been prepared in accordance with the standards issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board, and interpretations of the International Financial Reporting
Interpertation Committee arising from the International Accounting Standrads Board, as
adopted by Central Bank of Jordan.

The main differences between IFRSs as they should be applied and what has been
approved by the Central Bank of Jordan are as follows:

Provisions for expected credit losses are calculated in accordance with IFRS 9, and
according to the Central Bank of Jordan’s instructions, whichever is tougher. The material
differences are as follows:

¢ Elimination of debt instruments issued or granted by the Jordanian Government, in
addition to any credit exposures with / guaranteed by the Jordaninan Government, so
that such credit exposures are handled without incurring any credit losses.

¢ When calculating the credit losses against credit exposures, the calculation results
according to IFRS 9 are compared with those according to the Central Bank of Jordan’s
Instructions No. (47/2009) dated December 10, 2009 for each stage separately. The
tougher results are adopted.

e In some special cases, the Central Bank of Jordan agrees to special arrangements for
calculating and recording an allowance for expected credit losses for clients of direct
credit facilities over a specified period.

e Facilities related to government project extracts (transfer of government dues) are
excluded from the classification when calculating allocations.

e Based on the two circulars of the central bank of jordan to banks operating in Jordan
no .4375/3/10 and 14960/3/10 issued on March 15, 2020 and November 22, 2020, it
is permissable for the bank to postpone the instalements due or due on some
customers without concidering this as a structure, and without also effecting the
customer’s credit rating.

-12 -



Interest and commissions on non-performing credit facilities granted to clients is
suspended, in accordance with the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan.

Assets seized by the Bank are shown in the consolidated statement of financial position,
among other assets, at their current value when seized by the Bank or at their fair value,
whichever is lower. Furthermore, they are reassessed on the date of the consolidated
financial statements separately, and any decrease in value is recorded in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss while any increase in value is not recorded as revenue. In
addition, any subsequent increase is taken to the statement of profit or loss to the extent
of not exceeding the previously recorded value. A gradual provision has been taken
according to the Central Bank of Jordan’s Circular No. 10/3/13246 dated September 2,
2021. According to which the required provisions for the expropriated real estate in
violation of the provisions of article (48) of Banking law no.28 for the year 2000 as of the
year 2022, 5% annually of the total book values of those real estate, so that the required
percentage of 50% of those real estate is reached, by the end of 2030.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income, and financial derivatives stated at fair
value as of the date of the consolidated financial statements. Furthermore, hedged
financial assets and financial liabilities are stated at fair value.

The reporting currency of the consolidated financial statements is the Jordanian Dinar,
which is the functional currency of the Bank.

The accounting policies adopted in preparing the consolidated financial statements are
consistent with those applied in the year ended December 31, 2020 except for the effect
of what is stated in Note (3 -a &3 - b):

Basis of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Bank and the subsidiary under its control. Moreover, control is achieved when the
Bank has the ability to control the investee company, the company is exposed to variable
returns or has rights to participate in the investee company, and the Bank is able to use
its authority over the investee company, which affects its revenue.

Transactions, balances, revenues and expenses are eliminated between the Bank and the
subsidiary.

The financial statements of the subsidiary are prepared for the same financial year, using
the same accounting policies adopted by the Bank. If the accounting policies adopted by
the company are different from those used by the Bank, the necessary adjustments to the
financial statements of the subsidiary are made to comply with the accounting policies
followed by the Bank.

The results of the subsidiaries' operations are consolidated in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss effective from their acquisition date, which is the date on which control
over subsidiaries is effectively transferred to the Bank. Furthermore, the results of the
disposed of subsidiaries are consolidated in the consolidated statement of profit or loss up
to the date of their disposal, which is the date on which the Bank loses control over the
subsidiaries.

Non-controlling interests represent that part of the equity that is not owned by the Bank.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of the subsidiary are presented separately in
the Bank's statement of equity.
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The Bank owns the following subsidiaries as of December 31, 2021:

December 31, 2021

For the year ended December 31, 2021

Ownership
of the Paid-up Investment Date of Total Total Total
Company's Name Bank Capital amount Nature of Operation Acquisition Location Total Assets Liabilities Revenues Expenses
% D D D D D D
Al-Etihad for Financial
Brokerage Company L.L.C. 100 5,000,000 5,000,000 Financial Brokerage 2006 Jordan 12,161,447 794,693 677,899 (371,542)
Al-Etihad for Financial
Leasing Company L.L.C 100 10,000,000 10,000,000 Finance leasing 2015 Jordan 27,088,634 14,955,670 2,315,753 (1,409,692)
Acquisition of bonds and
shares in
companies and borrowing
Al-Etihad Islamic the necessary funds from
Investment Company L.L.C* 58 113,039,028 65,562,636 banks 2016 Jordan 114,197,423 29,427 3,742,215 (7,500)
. . . Manufacturing,
Al-Etihad for Financial programing development
Technology Company 100 100,000 100,000 and supplying programs 2019 Jordan 747,564 661,663 376,736 (414,104)
TOTAL 128,139,028 80,662,636
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The Bank owns the following subsidiaries as of December 31, 2020:

December 31, 2020

For the year ended December 31, 2020

Ownership of Paid-up Investment Date of Total Total
Company's Name the Bank Capital amount Nature of Operation Acquisition Location Total Assets Total Liabilities Revenues Expenses
% JD D D D D D
Al-Etihad for Financial
Brokerage Company L.L.C. 100 5,000,000 5,000,000 Financial Brokerage 2006 Jordan 11,698,977 638,580 1,078,424 (475,067)
Al-Etihad for Financial Leasing
Company L.L.C 100 10,000,000 10,000,000 Finance leasing 2015 Jordan 20,195,456 8,968,553 1,549,435 (880,725)
Acquisition of bonds
and shares in
companies and
borrowing the
Al-Etihad Islamic Investment necessary funds from
Company L.L.C* 58 113,039,028 65,562,636 banks 2016 Jordan 113,964,794 31,513 - (30,050)
Manufacturing,
. . . programing
Al-Etihad for Financial development and
Technology Company 100 100,000 100,000  supplying programs 2019 Jordan 133,173 9,904 1,024,541  (995,086)
TOTAL 128,139,028 80,662,636
* Al-Etihad  Islamic Investment Company owned a presntege of 62.4% in Safwa Islamic Bank where the total asset amounted to

JD 2,336,135,319 and total liability amounted to JD 432,048,569 and total revenue amounted to JD 49,198,762 and total expenses amounted to JD 26,381,582.
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Control is achieved when the Bank:

e Has power over the investee.

e Is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
e Has the ability to use its power to affect the investee’s returns.

The Bank reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the elements of control listed above.

When the Bank has less than the majority of the voting rights of an investee, it considers that
it has power over the investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. In this regard, the Bank considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Bank’s voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

e The size of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of
other voting rights;

e Potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;

e Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e Any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Bank has, or does not have,
the current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be
taken, including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

When it loses control of a subsidiary, the Bank performs the following;

e Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary.

e Derecognizes the book value of any non-controlling interests.

e Derecognizes transfer differences restricted in Owners’ Equity.

e Derecognizes the fair value to the next controlling party.

e Derecognizes the fair value of any investment retained.

e Derecognizes any gain or loss in the income statement.

e Reclassifies owners’ equity already booked in other comprehensive income to the profit
or loss statement as appropriate.

The subsidiaries’ financial statements are prepared under the same accounting policies adopted
by the Bank. If the subsidiaries apply different accounting policies than those used by the Bank,
the necessary modifications shall be made to the subsidiaries’ financial statements to make
them comply with the accounting policies used by the Bank.

The non-controlling interests represent the portion not owned by the Bank relating to ownership
of the subsidiaries.

Segment Information

- Business sectors represent a group of assets and operations that jointly provide products or
services subject to risks and returns different from those of other business sectors measured
in accordance with the reports sent to the operations management and decision makers in
the Bank.

- The geographical sector relates to providing products or services in a specific economic
environment subject to risks and returns different from those of sectors functioning in other
economic environments.

Net Interest Income

Interest income and expense for all financial instruments, except for those classified as held
for trading, or those measured or designated as at fair value through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, are recognized in “Net interest income” as “Interest income” and
“Interest Expense” in the statement of profit or loss using the effective interest method.
Interest on financial instruments measured as at fair value through the statement of profit or
loss is included within the fair value movement during the period.
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The effective interest rate (EIR) is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
flows of the financial instrument through the expected life of the financial instrument or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. The future cash flows are estimated taking into account all the contractual terms of
the instrument.

The interest income/ interest expense is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying
amount of non-credit impaired financial assets (i.e. at the amortized cost of the financial asset
before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance), or to the amortized cost of financial
liabilities. For credit-impaired financial assets, interest income is calculated by applying the EIR
to the amortized cost of the credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. the gross carrying amount
less the allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs)). For financial assets originated or
purchased credit-impaired (POCI), EIR reflects the ECLs in determining the future cash flows
expected to be received from the financial asset.

Interest income and expense in the Banks’s consolidated statement of profit or loss also
includes the effective portion of the fair value changes of derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in the cash flow hedges of interest rate risk. For fair value hedges of interest rate
risk related to interest income and expense, the effective portion of the fair value changes of
the designated derivatives, as well as the fair value changes of the designated risk of the
hedged item, are also included in interest income and expense.

Net Fee and Commission Income

Fee and commission income and expense include fees other than those that are an integral
part of EIR. The fees included in this part of the Group’s consolidated statement of profit or
loss include, among other things, fees charged for servicing a loan, non-utilization fees relating
to loan commitments when it is unlikely that these will result in a specific lending arrangement,
and loan syndication fees.

Fee and commission expenses concerning services are accounted for as the services are
received.

Part of the contracts with clients that result from the recognition of financial instruments could
be related to IFRS (9) or (15). In this case, IFRS 9-related part of the commission is recognized,
and the remaining part is recognized according to IFRS (15).

Net Trading Income

Net trading income includes all gains and losses from changes in the fair value of financial
assets and financial liabilities held for trading. The Bank has elected to present the full fair
value movement of trading assets and liabilities in trading income, including any related
interest income, expense, and dividends.

Net Income from Other Financial Instruments at Fair Value through the Statement of Profit or
Loss:

Net income from other financial instruments at fair value through the statement of profit or
loss includes all gains and losses from changes in the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through the statement of profit or loss except those that are held for
trading. The Bank has elected to present the full fair value movement of assets and liabilities
at fair value through the statement of profit or loss in this line, including the related interest
income, expense, and dividends.

The fair value movement on derivatives held for economic hedging where hedge accounting is
not applied is presented in “Net income from other financial instruments at fair value through
the statement of profit or loss”. However, for designated and effective fair value hedge
accounting relationships, the gains and losses on the hedging instrument are presented in the
same line in the statement of profit or losses as a hedged item. For designated and effective
cash flow and net investment hedge accounting relationships, the gains and losses of the
hedging instrument, including any hedging ineffectiveness included in the statement of profit
or loss, are presented in the same line as the hedged item that affects the statement of profit
or loss.
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Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established. This is the
ex-dividend date for listed equity securities, and usually the date when shareholders approve
the dividend for unlisted equity securities.

The presentation of dividend income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss depends on
the classification and measurement of the equity investment, i.e.:

e For equity instruments which are held for trading, dividend income is presented as gain
(loss) of financial assets at fair value through the statement of profit or loss, in the
statement of profit or loss;

e For equity instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income,
dividend income is presented in the statement of profit or loss as dividends revenue from
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income; and

e For equity instruments not designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
and not held for trading, dividend income is presented as net income from other
instruments at fair value through the statement of profit or loss.

Financial Instruments

Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the Bank’s consolidated statement of
financial position when the Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Recognized financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through the
statement of income) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities on initial recognition, as appropriate. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through the statement
of profit or loss are recognized immediately in the statement of profit or loss.

If the transaction price differs from the fair value at initial recognition, the Bank will account

for such difference as follows:

e If fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or
liability or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets,
then the difference is recognized in the statement of profit or loss’ initial recognition (i.e.
day 1 profit or loss);

e 1In all other cases, fair value will be adjusted to bring it in line with the transaction price (i.e.
day 1 profit or loss will be deferred by including it in the initial carrying amount of the asset
or liability).

After initial recognition, the deferred gain or loss will be released to the statement of profit or
loss on a rational basis, only to the extent that it arises from a change in a factor (including
time) that market participants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability or
when derecognizing the instrument.

Financial Assets

Initial Recognition

All financial assets are recognized on the trading date when the purchase or sale of a financial
asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the
timeframe established by the market concerned. They are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs, except for those financial assets classified as at fair value through the
statement of profit or loss. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets classified as at fair value through the statement of profit or loss are recognized
immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Subsequent Measurement

All recognized financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS (9) are required to be
subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value on the basis of the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial assets.

Specifically:

e Debt instruments held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding (SPPI), are subsequently measured at
amortized cost;

e Debt instruments held within a business model whose objective is both to collect the
contractual cash flows and to sell the debt instruments, and that have contractual cash
flows that are SPPI, are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income;

o All other debt instruments (e.g. debt instruments managed on a fair value basis, or held
for sale) and equity investments are subsequently measured at fair value through the
statement of profit or loss.

However, the Bank may irrevocably make the following selection / designation at initial
recognition of a financial asset on an asset- by-asset basis:

e The Bank may irrevocably select to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment that is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognized by an
acquirer in a business combination to which IFRS (3) applies, in other comprehensive
income; and

e The Bank may irrevocably designate a debt instrument that meets the amortized cost or
fair value through other comprehensive income criteria as measured at fair value through
the statement of profit or loss if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch (referred to as the fair value option).

Debt Instruments at Amortized Cost or at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income
The Bank assesses the classification and measurement of a financial asset based on the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the asset and the Bank’s business model for managing
the asset.

For an asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, its contractual terms should give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding (SPPI).

For the purpose of (SPPI) test, principal is the fair value of the financial asset at initial
recognition. That principal amount may change over the life of the financial asset (e.g. if there
are repayments of principal). Interest consists of consideration for the time value of money,
for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period,
and for other basic lending risks and costs, as well as a profit margin. The SPPI assessment is
made in the currency in which the financial asset is denominated.

Contractual cash flows that are SPPI are consistent with a basic lending arrangement.
Contractual terms that introduce exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash flows
that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement, such as exposure to changes in equity prices
or commodity prices, do not give rise to contractual cash flows that are SPPI. An originated or
an acquired financial asset can be a basic lending arrangement irrespective of whether it is a
loan in its legal form.
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Assessment of Business Models

An assessment of business models for managing financial assets is fundamental to the
classification of a financial asset. The Bank determines the business models at a level that
reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business
objective. The Bank’s business model does not depend on management’s intentions for an
individual instrument; therefore, the business model assessment is performed at a higher level
of aggregation rather than on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

The Bank has more than one business model for managing its financial instruments that reflect
how the Bank manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The Bank's business
models determine whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling
financial assets or both.

The Bank considers all relevant information available when making the business model
assessment. However, this assessment is not performed based on scenarios that the Bank does
not reasonably expect to occur, such as so-called “worst case” or “stress case” scenarios. The
Bank takes into account all relevant evidence available such as:

e The stated policies and objectives of the portfolio and application of those policies concerning
if the management strategy focuses on obtaining contractual revenues, maintaining a
specific profit rate, and matching the maturity period of financial assets with that of the
financial liabilities that finance those assets.

e How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that
business model are evaluated and reported to the entity’s key management personnel;

e The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and, in particular, the way in which those risks are managed;
and

¢ How the business managers are compensated (e.g. whether the compensation is based on
the fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected).

At initial recognition of a financial asset, the Bank determines whether newly recognized
financial assets are part of an existing business model or whether they reflect the
commencement of a new business model. The Bank reassess its business models each
reporting period to determine whether the business models have changed since the preceding
period.

When a debt instrument measured at fair value through other comprehensive income is
derecognized, the cumulative gain/loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income
is reclassified from equity to the statement of income. In contrast, for an equity investment
designated as measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, the cumulative
gain/loss previously recognized in OCI is not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss but
transferred within equity.

Debt instruments that are subsequently measured at amortized cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income are subject to impairment.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through the Statement of Profit or Loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are:

e Assets with contractual cash flows that are not SPPI; or/and

e Assets that are held in a business model other than held to collect contractual cash flows
or held to collect and sell; or

e Assets designated at fair value through profit or loss using the fair value option.

These assets are measured at fair value, with any gains/losses arising on re-measurement
recognized in the consolidated statement of income or loss.
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Reclassifications

If the business model under which the Bank holds financial assets changes, the financial assets
affected are reclassified. The classification and measurement requirements related to the new
category apply prospectively from the first day of the first reporting period following the change
in business model, which results in reclassifying the Bank’s financial assets. During the current
financial year and previous accounting period, there was no change in the business model
under which the Bank holds financial assets, and therefore, no reclassifications were made.
The changes in the contractual cash flows are considered under the accounting policy on the
modification and de-recognition of financial assets described below.

Foreign Exchange Gains and Losses

The carrying amount of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in
that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period.
Specifically:

e For financial assets measured at amortized cost that are not part of a designated hedging
relationship, exchange differences are recognized in the statement of income; and

e For debt instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income that are
not part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange differences on the amortized cost
of the debt instrument are recognized in the statement of income. Other exchange
differences are recognized in other comprehensive income in the investment’s revaluation
reserve; and

e For financial assets measured at fair value through the statement of profit or loss that are
not part of a designated hedge accounting relationship, exchange differences are recognized
in the statement of profit or loss either in ‘net trading income’, if the asset is held for trading,
or in ‘net income from other financial instruments at fair value through the statement of
profit or loss if otherwise held at fair value through the statement of profit or loss; and

e For equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income,
exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income in the investments
revaluation reserve.

Fair Value Option

A financial instrument with a fair value that can be reliably measured at fair value through the
statement of profit or loss (fair value option) may be classified at initial recognition even if the
financial instruments are not acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing. The fair value option may be used for financial assets if it significantly eliminates
or significantly reduces the measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise
have resulted in the measurement of the asset or liability or recognized the related gain or loss
on a different basis ("accounting mismatch"). The fair value option for financial liabilities can
be chosen in the following cases:

o If the selection leads to a significant cancellation or reduction of the accounting mismatch;

o If the financial liabilities are part of a portfolio managed on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management or investment strategy; or

e If a derivative is included in the underlying financial or non-financial contract and the
derivative is not closely related to the underlying contract.

These instruments can not be reclassified from the fair value category through the statement
of profit or loss while retained or issued. Financial assets at fair value through the income
statement are recognized at fair value with any unrealized gain or loss arising from changes in
fair value recognized in investment income.

Impairment

The Bank recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on the following financial
instruments that are not measured at fair value through the statement of income:

Balances and deposits at banks and financial institutions;

Direct credit facilities (loans and advances to customers);

Financial assets at amortized cost (debt investment securities);

Financial assets at fair value through statement of other comprehensive income;
Off-statement of financial position exposure subject to credit risk (financial guarantee
contracts issued).
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No impairment loss is recognized on equity investments.

With the exception of purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets (which
are considered separately below), ECLs are required to be measured through a loss allowance
at an amount equal to:

e 12-month ECLs, i.e. lifetime ECL that result from those default events on the financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date, (referred to as Stage
1); or

e Full lifetime ECLs, i.e. lifetime ECL that result from all possible default events over the life
of the financial instrument, (referred to as Stage 2 and Stage 3).

A loss allowance for full lifetime ECL is required for a financial instrument if the credit risk on
that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. For all other
financial instruments, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of the present value of credit losses. These are
measured as the present value of the difference between the cash flows due to the Group under
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive arising from the weighting
of multiple future economic scenarios, discounted at the asset’s EIR.

For unutilized loan limits, the ECL is the difference between the present value of the difference
between the contractual cash flows that are due to the Group if the holder of the commitment
draws down the loan and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive if the loan is utilized;
and

For financial guarantee contracts, the ECL is the difference between the expected payments to
reimburse the holder of the guaranteed debt instrument less any amounts that the Group
expects to receive from the holder, the client, or any other party.

The Bank measures ECL on an individual basis, or on a collective basis for portfolios of loans
that share similar economic risk characteristics. The measurement of the loss allowance is
based on the present value of the asset’s expected cash flows using the asset’s original EIR,
regardless of whether it is measured on an individual basis or a collective basis.

When calculating the credit losses against credit exposures, the calculation results according
to IFRS 9 are compared with those according to the Central Bank of Jordan Instructions No.
(2009/47) dated December 10, 2009 for each stage individually, and the tougher results are
taken. The credit instruments issued / guaranteed by the Jordanian Government, in addition
to any other credit exposures with / guaranteed by the Jordanian government are excluded
from the calculation.

Credit-impaired Financial Assets

A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Credit-impaired
financial assets are referred to as Stage 3 assets. Evidence of credit-impairment includes
observable data about the following events:

e Significant financial difficulties facing the borrower or issuer;

e A breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

e The lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession that the lender would not
otherwise consider;

The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties; or
The purchase of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.
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If it may not be possible to identify a single discrete event. Instead, the combined effect of
several events may have caused financial assets to become credit-impaired. The Bank assesses
whether debt instruments that are financial assets measured at amortized cost or fair value
through other comprehensive income are credit-impaired at each reporting date. To assess if
sovereign and corporate debt instruments are credit impaired, the Bank considers factors such
as bond yields, credit ratings, and the ability of the borrower to raise funding.

A loan is considered credit-impaired when a concession is granted to the borrower due to a
deterioration in the borrower’s financial condition, unless there is evidence that as a result of
granting the concession, the risk of not receiving the contractual cash flows has reduced
significantly, and there are no other indicators of impairment. For financial assets where
concessions are contemplated but not granted, the asset is deemed credit-impaired when there
is observable evidence of credit-impairment, including meeting the definition of default. The
definition of default includes unlikeliness to pay indicators and a back- stop if amounts are
overdue for 90 days or more. However, cases where the assets impairment is not recognized
after 90 days of their becoming due are supported by reasonable information.

Purchased or Originated Credit-impaired (POCI) Financial Assets
POCI financial assets are treated differently because the asset is credit-impaired at initial
recognition. For these assets, the Bank recognizes all changes in lifetime ECL since initial
recognition as a loss allowance with any changes recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
A favorable change for such assets creates an impairment gain.

Definition of Default

Critical to the determination of ECL is the definition of default. The definition of default is used
in measuring the amount of ECL and in determining whether the loss allowance is based on
12-month or lifetime ECL, as default is a component of the probability of default (PD) which
affects both the measurement of ECLs and the identification of a significant increase in the
credit risk below.

The Bank considers the following as constituting an event of default:

e The borrower is past due for more than 90 days on any material credit obligation to the
Bank; or
e The borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Bank in full.

The definition of default is appropriately tailored to reflect different characteristics of different
types of assets. Overdrafts are considered as being past due once the customer has breached
an advised limit or has been advised of a limit smaller than the current amount outstanding.

When assessing if the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligation, the Bank takes into
account both qualitative and quantitative indicators. The information assessed depends on the
type of the asset. For example, in corporate lending, a qualitative indicator used is the breach
of covenants, which is not relevant for retail lending. Quantitative indicators, such as overdue
status and non-payment on another obligation of the same counterparty are key inputs in this
analysis. The Bank uses a variety of sources of information to assess default that is either
developed internally or obtained from external sources.

Significant Increase in Credit Risk

The Bank monitors all financial assets, issued loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts that are subject to the impairment requirements to assess whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If there has been a significant increase
in credit risk, the Bank measures the loss allowance based on lifetime rather than 12-month
ECL.

The Bank’s accounting policy is not to use the practical expedient that financial assets with
‘low’ credit risk at the reporting date are deemed not to have had a significant increase in credit
risk. As a result, the Group monitors all financial assets, issued loan commitments, and financial
guarantee contracts that are subject to impairment for significant increase in credit risk.
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In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Bank compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
at the reporting date based on the remaining maturity of the instrument with the risk of a
default occurring that was anticipated for the remaining maturity at the current reporting date
when the financial instrument was first recognized. In making this assessment, the Bank
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort, based on the Bank's historical experience and expert credit assessment including
forward-looking information.

Multiple economic scenarios form the basis of determining the probability of default at initial
recognition and at subsequent reporting dates. Different economic scenarios will lead to a
different probability of default. It is the weighting of these different scenarios that forms the
basis of a weighted average probability of default that is used to determine whether credit risk
has significantly increased.

For corporate lending, forward-looking information includes the future prospects of the
industries in which the Bank’s counterparties operate, obtained from economic expert reports,
financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think tanks and other similar organizations,
as well as consideration of various internal and external sources of actual and forecast economic
information. For retail, lending forward-looking information includes the same economic
forecasts as corporate lending with additional forecasts of local economic indicators, particularly
for regions with a concentration to certain industries, as well as internally generated
information of customer payment behavior. The Bank allocates its counterparties to a relevant
internal credit risk grade depending on their credit quality. The quantitative information is a
primary indicator of a significant increase in credit risk and is based on the change in lifetime
PD by comparing:

e The remaining lifetime PD at the reporting date; with
e The remaining lifetime PD for this point in time that was estimated based on facts and
circumstances at the time of initial recognition of the exposure.

The PDs used are forward looking, and the Bank uses the same methodologies and data used
to measure the loss allowance for ECL.

The qualitative factors that indicate significant increase in credit risk are reflected in PD models
on a timely basis. However, the Bank still considers separately some qualitative factors to
assess if credit risk has increased significantly. For corporate lending, there is particular focus
on assets included in the ‘watch list’, as exposure is watch-listed once there is a concern that
the creditworthiness of the specific counterparty has deteriorated. For retail lending, the Bank
considers the expectation of forbearance and payment holidays, credit scores and events such
as unemployment, bankruptcy, divorce, or death.

Given that a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition is a relative measure, a
given change, in absolute terms, in the PD will be more significant for a financial instrument
with a lower initial PD compared to a financial instrument with a higher PD.

As a back-stop when an asset becomes more than (45) days past due, the Bank considers that
a significant increase in credit risk has occurred and the asset is in Stage 2 of the impairment
model, i.e. the loss allowance is measured as the lifetime ECL.

Modification and Derecognition of Financial Assets

A modification of a financial asset occurs when the contractual terms governing the cash flows
of a financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified between initial recognition and
maturity of the financial asset. A modification affects the amount and/or timing of the
contractual cash flows either immediately or at a future date. In addition, the introduction or
adjustment of existing covenants of an existing loan would constitute a modification even if
these new or adjusted covenants do not yet affect the cash flows immediately but may affect
the cash flows depending on whether the covenant is or is not met (e.g. a change to the
increase in the interest rate that arises when covenants are breached).

- 24 -




The Bank renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulty to maximize collection and
minimize the risk of default. A loan forbearance is granted in cases where although the borrower
made all reasonable efforts to pay under the original contractual terms, there is a high risk of
default, or default has already happened, and the borrower is expected to be able to meet the
revised terms. The revised terms in most of the cases include an extension of the maturity of
the loan, changes to the timing of the cash flows of the loan (principal and interest repayment),
reduction in the amount of cash flows due (principal and interest forgiveness) and amendments
to covenants. The Bank has an established forbearance policy, which applies for corporate and
retail lending.

When a financial asset is modified, the Bank assesses whether this modification results in
derecognition. In accordance with the Bank’s policy, a modification results in derecognition
when it gives rise to substantially different terms.

e Qualitative factors, such as contractual cash flows after modification are no longer (SPPI),
change in currency or change of counterparty, the extent of change in interest rates,
maturity, and covenants. If these do not clearly indicate a substantial modification, then;

e A guantitative assessment is performed to compare the present value of the remaining
contractual cash flows under the original terms with the contractual cash flows under the
revised terms, both amounts discounted at the original effective interest.

In the case where the financial asset is derecognized, the loss allowance for ECL is re-measured
at the date of derecognition to determine the net carrying amount of the asset at that date.
The difference between this revised carrying amount and the fair value of the new financial
asset with the new terms will lead to a gain or loss on derecognition. The new financial asset
will have a loss allowance measured based on 12-month ECL except in the rare occasions where
the new loan is considered to be originated- credit impaired. This applies only in the case where
the fair value of the new loan is recognized at a significant discount to its revised par amount
because there remains a high risk of default that has not been reduced by the modification.
The Bank monitors the credit risk of modified financial assets by evaluating qualitative and
quantitative information, such as if the borrower is in past due status under the new terms.

When the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified and the modification does not

result in derecognition, the Bank determines if the financial asset’s credit risk has increased

significantly since initial recognition by comparing:

e The remaining lifetime PD estimated based on data at initial recognition and the original
contractual terms; with

e The remaining lifetime PD at the reporting date based on the modified terms.

For financial assets modified as part of the Bank’s forbearance policy, where modification did
not result in derecognition, the estimate of PD reflects the Bank’s ability to collect the modified
cash flows taking into account the Bank’s previous experience of similar forbearance action, as
well as various behavioral indicators, including the borrower’s payment performance against
the modified contractual terms. If the credit risk remains significantly higher than what was
expected at initial recognition, the loss allowance will continue to be measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECL. The loss allowance on forborne loans will generally only be measured
based on 12-month ECL when there is evidence of the borrower’s improved repayment behavior
following modification leading to a reversal of the previous significant increase in credit risk.

Where a modification does not lead to derecognition, the Bank calculates the modification
gain/loss, comparing the gross carrying amount before and after the modification (excluding
the ECL allowance). Then the Bank measures ECL for the modified asset, where the expected
cash flows arising from the modified financial asset are included in the calculation of the
expected cash shortfalls from the original asset.

The Bank derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the asset’s cash
flows expire (including expiry arising from a modification with substantially different terms), or
when the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
are transferred to another entity. If the Bank neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Bank
recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for the amounts it may
have to pay. If the Bank retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Bank continues to recognize the financial asset and recognizes
a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.
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On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain/loss
that had been recognized in OCI and accumulated in equity is recognized in profit or loss, with
the exception of equity investment designated as measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income, where the cumulative gain/loss previously recognized in OCI is not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Write-off

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, eg the
customer has not entered into a payment plan with the bank. The bank classifies the funds or
amounts due to be written off after exhausting all possible payment methods. But if the
financing or the receivable is written off, the bank continues with the enforcement activity to
try to recover the outstanding receivable, which is recognized in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss when redeemed.

Presentation of Allowance for ECL in the Consolidation Statement of Financial Position

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

e For financial assets measured at amortized cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying
amount of the assets;

e For debt instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income: no loss
allowance is recognized in the statement of financial position as the carrying amount is at
fair value. However, the loss allowance is included as part of the revaluation amount in the
investments revaluation reserve.

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: as a provision; and

Where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component, and the
Bank cannot identify the ECL on the loan commitment component separately from those
on the drawn component: the Bank presents a combined loss allowance for both
components. The combined amount is presented as a deduction from the gross carrying
amount of the drawn component. Any excess of the loss allowance over the gross amount
of the drawn component is presented as a provision.

Financial Liabilities and Equity
Debt and equity instruments issued are classified either as financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

A financial liability is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset or to
exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are
potentially unfavorable to the Bank; or a contract that will or may be settled in the Bank’s own
equity instruments and is a non-derivative contract for which the Bank is or may be obliged to
deliver a variable number of its own equity instruments; or a derivative contract over own
equity that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash (or
another financial asset) for a fixed number of the Banks own equity instruments.

Equity Instruments

Paid-up Capital

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Bank are recognized at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Treasury Shares

Repurchase of the Bank’s own equity instruments is recognized and deducted directly in equity.
No gain or loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when purchasing,
selling, issuing, or cancelling the Bank’s own equity instruments.

Compound instruments

The component parts of compound instruments (e.g. convertible notes) issued by the Bank are
classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
A conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is an equity
instrument.
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At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing
market interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments. In the case where there are non-
closed related embedded derivatives, these are separated first with the remainder of the
financial liability being recorded on an amortized cost basis, using the effective interest method
until extinguished upon conversion, or at the instrument’s maturity date.

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at fair value through the statement
of income’ or ‘other financial liabilities’.

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through the Statement of Profit or Loss

Financial liabilities are classified as at fair value through the statement of profit or loss when

the financial liability is (i) held for trading, or (ii) it is designated as at fair value through the

statement of income. A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

e It has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

e On initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the
Bank manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e Itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading or contingent consideration

that may be paid by an acquirer as part of a business combination may be designated as at

fair value through the statement of profit or loss upon initial recognition if:

e Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

e The financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Bank’s documented risk management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

e It forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and IFRS (9)
permits the entire hybrid (combined) contract to be designated as at fair value through the
statement of income.

Financial liabilities at fair value through the statement of profit or loss are stated at fair value,
with any gains/losses arising on re-measurement recognized in the statement of profit or loss
to the extent that they are not part of a designated hedging relationship. The net gain/loss
recognized in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included
in the ‘net income from other financial instruments at fair value through the statement of profit
or loss.

However, for non-derivative financial liabilities designated as at fair value through the
statement of income, the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognized in OCI, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value of liability is
recognized in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk
that are recognized in OCI are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss; instead, they are
transferred to retained earnings upon derecognition of the financial liability.

For issued loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts designated as at fair value
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss, all gains and losses are recognized in
consolidated profit or loss.

In determining whether recognizing changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income will create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, the Bank assesses
whether it expects that the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk will be offset in profit
or loss by a change in the fair value of another financial instrument measured at fair value
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Other Financial Liabilities

Other financial liabilities, including deposits and borrowings, are initially measured at fair value,
net of transaction costs. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. For
details on EIR, see the “net interest income section” above.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

The Bank derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Bank’s obligations are
discharged, canceled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss.

When the Bank exchanges with the existing lender one debt instrument into another one with
substantially different terms, such exchange is accounted for as an extinguishment of the
original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, the Bank
accounts for substantial modification of terms of an existing liability or part of it as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new liability. It is
assumed that the terms are substantially different if the discounted present value of the cash
flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted
using the original effective rate, is at least (10) per cent different from the discounted present
value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Bank enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments some of which are held for
trading while others are held to manage the Bank's exposure to interest rate risk, credit risk,
and foreign exchange rate risk. Derivatives held include foreign exchange forward contracts,
interest rate swaps, cross currency interest rate swaps, and credit default swaps.

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into,
and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at each balance sheet date. The resulting
gain/loss is recognized in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and
effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss
depends on the nature of the hedge relationship. The Bank designates certain derivatives as
hedges of the fair value of recognized assets or liabilities or firm commitments (fair value
hedges), hedges of highly probable forecast transactions, hedges of foreign currency risk of
firm commitments (cash flow hedges), or hedges of net investments in foreign operations (net
investment hedges).

A derivative with a positive fair value is recognized as a financial asset whereas a derivative
with a negative fair value is recognized as a financial liability. A derivative is presented as a
non-current asset or a non-current liability if the remaining maturity of the instrument is more
than (12) months, and it is not expected to be realized or settled within (12) months. Other
derivatives are presented as current assets or current liabilities.

Embedded Derivatives

Derivatives embedded in financial liabilities or other non-financial asset host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not closely related to
those of the host contracts, and the host contracts are not measured at fair value through profit
or loss.

An embedded derivative is presented as a non-current asset or a non-current liability if the
remaining maturity of the hybrid instrument to which the embedded derivative relates is more
than 12 months and is not expected to be realized or settled within 12 months. Other embedded
derivatives are presented as current assets or current liabilities.
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Financial Guarantee Contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by a group entity are initially measured at their fair values

and, if not designated as at fair value through profit or loss and not arising from a transfer of

a financial asset, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

e The amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance with IFRS (9); and

e The amount initially recognized less, where appropriate, cumulative amount of income
recognized in accordance with the Bank’s revenue recognition policies.

Financial guarantee contracts not designated at fair value through profit or loss are presented
as provisions in the consolidated statement of financial position, and the re-measurement is
presented in other revenue.

The Bank has not designated any financial guarantee contracts as at fair value through profit
or loss.

Commitments to Provide a Loan at a Below-Market Interest Rate

Commitments to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate are initially measured at their
fair values and, if not designated as at fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently
measured at the higher of:

e The amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance with IFRS (9); and
e The amount initially recognized less, where appropriate, cumulative amount of income
recognized in accordance with the Bank’s revenue recognition policies.

Commitments to provide a loan below market rate not designated at fair value through profit
or loss are presented as provisions in the consolidated statement of financial position, and the
re-measurement is presented in other revenue.

The Bank has not designated any commitments to provide a loan below market rate designated
at fair value through profit or loss.

Hedge Accounting

The Bank designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments in respect of foreign currency
risk and interest rate risk in fair value hedges, cash flow hedges, or hedges of net investments
in foreign operations as appropriate. Hedges of foreign exchange risk on firm commitments are
accounted for as cash flow hedges. The Bank does not apply fair value hedge accounting of
portfolio hedges of interest rate risk. In addition, the Bank does not use the exemption to
continue using IAS (39) hedge accounting rules, i.e. the Bank applies IFRS (9) hedge
accounting rules in full.
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At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Bank documents the relationship between the
hedging instrument and the hedged item, along with its risk management objectives and its
strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge
and on an ongoing basis, the Bank documents whether the hedging instrument is effective in
offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged
risk, which is when the hedging relationships meet all of the following hedge effectiveness
requirements:

e There is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument;

e The effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result from that economic
relationship; and

e The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity
of the hedged item that the Bank actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument
that the Bank actually uses to hedge that quantity of the hedged item.

The Bank rebalances a hedging relationship in order to comply with the hedge ratio
requirements, when necessary. In such cases, discontinuation may apply to only part of the
hedging relationship. For example, the hedge ratio might be adjusted in such a way that some
of the volume of the hedged item is no longer part of a hedging relationship; hence, hedge
accounting is discontinued only for the volume of the hedged item that is no longer part of the
hedging relationship.

If a hedging relationship ceases to meet the hedge effectiveness requirement relating to the
hedge ratio, but the risk management objective for that designated hedging relationship
remains the same, the Bank adjusts the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship (i.e. rebalances
the hedge) so that it meets the qualifying criteria again.

In some hedge relationships, the Bank designates only the intrinsic value of options. In this
case, the fair value change of the time value component of the option contract is deferred in
OCI, over the term of the hedge, to the extent that it relates to the hedged item and is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the hedged item does not result in the recognition
of a non-financial item. The Bank’s risk management policy does not include hedges of items
that result in the recognition of non-financial items, because the Bank’s risk exposures relate
to financial items only.

The hedged items designated by the Bank are time-period related hedged items, which means
that the amount of the original time value of the option that relates to the hedged item is
amortized from equity to profit or loss on a rational basis (e.g. straight- line) over the term of
the hedging relationship.

In some hedge relationships, the Bank excludes from the designation the forward element of
forward contracts or the currency basis spread of cross currency hedging instruments. In this
case, a treatment is applied similar to the one applied for the time value of options. The
treatment for the forward element of a forward and the currency basis element is optional, and
the option is applied on a hedge-by-hedge basis, unlike the treatment for the time value of the
options, which is mandatory. For hedge relationships with forwards or foreign currency
derivatives such as cross currency interest rate swaps, where the forward element or the
currency basis spread is excluded from the designation, the Bank generally recognizes the
excluded element in OCI.

The fair values of the derivative instruments used for hedging purposes and movements in the
hedging reserve are determined in equity.
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Fair Value Hedges

The fair value change on qualifying hedging instruments is recognized in profit or loss except
when the hedging instrument hedges an equity instrument designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income in which case it is recognized in OCI. The Bank has not designated
fair value hedge relationships where the hedging instrument hedges an equity instrument
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The carrying amount of a hedged item not already measured at fair value is adjusted for the
fair value change attributable to the hedged risk with a corresponding entry in profit or loss.
For debt instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, the carrying
amount is not adjusted as it is already at fair value, but the part of the fair value gain or loss
on the hedged item associated with the hedged risk is recognized in profit or loss instead of
OCI. When the hedged item is an equity instrument designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income, the hedging gain/loss remains in other comprehensive income to
match that of the hedging instrument.

Where hedging gains/losses are recognized in profit or loss, they are recognized in the same
line as the hedged item.

The Bank discontinues hedge accounting only when the hedging relationship (or a part thereof)
ceases to meet the qualifying criteria (after rebalancing, if applicable). This includes instances
when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised. The discontinuation
is accounted for prospectively. The fair value adjustment to the carrying amount of hedged
items for which the EIR method is used (i.e. debt instruments measured at amortized cost or
at fair value through other comprehensive income) arising from the hedged risk is amortized
to profit or loss commencing no later than the date when hedge accounting is discontinued.

Cash Flow Hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives and other qualifying hedging
instruments that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognized in the cash flow
hedging reserve, a separate component of OCI, limited to the cumulative change in fair value
of the hedged item from inception of the hedge less any amounts recycled to profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognized in OCI and accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or
loss in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss, in the same line as the
recognized hedged item. If the Bank no longer expects the transaction to occur, that amount
is immediately reclassified to profit or loss.

The Bank discontinues hedge accounting only when the hedging relationship (or a part thereof)
ceases to meet the qualifying criteria (after rebalancing, if applicable). This includes instances
when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or where the
occurrence of the designated hedged forecast transaction is no longer considered to be highly
probable. The discontinuation is accounted for prospectively. Any gain/loss recognized in OCI
and accumulated in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognized when the forecast
transaction is ultimately recognized in profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer
expected to occur, the gain/loss accumulated in equity is reclassified and recognized
immediately in profit or loss.

Hedges of Net Investments in Foreign Operations

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges.
Any gain/loss on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is
recognized in OCI and accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve.

Gains and losses on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge
accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve are reclassified to profit or loss in the
same way as exchange differences relating to the foreign operation as described above.
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Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment. Property and equipment (except land) are depreciated when ready for use using
the straight-line method over their expected useful life.

The depreciation rates used are as follows:

%
Buildings 2-4
Equipment, furniture and fixtures 7- 15
Vehicles 15
Computer 20

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable. If such
indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amounts, the
assets are written down to their recoverable amount, and the impairment is charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The useful life of property and equipment is reviewed at each year-end, and changes in the
expected useful life are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

Fair Value

Fair value is defined as the price at which an asset is to be sold or paid to convert any of the
liabilities in a structured transaction between the market participants on the measurement
date, irrespective of whether the price can be realized directly or whether it is estimated using
another valuation technique. When estimating the fair value of an asset or liability, the Bank
takes into consideration, when determining the price of any asset or liability, whether market
participants are required to take these factors into account at the measurement date. Fair value
for the purposes of measurement and / or disclosure in these financial statements is determined
on the same basis, except for measurement procedures that are similar to the fair value
procedures and are not fair value such as fair value as used in IAS (36).

In addition, fair value measurements are classified, for the purposes of financial reporting to

level (1), (2) or (3), based on the extent to which the inputs are clear concerning the fair value

measurements and the importance of inputs to the full fair value measurements. The details

are as follows:

Level (1) Inputs: Inputs derived from quoted (unadjusted) prices of identical assets or
liabilities in active markets that an enterprise can obtain on the
measurement date;

Level (2) Inputs: Inputs derived from data other than quoted prices used at level 1 and
observable for assets or liabilities, either directly or indirectly;

Level (3) Inputs: Inputs to assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market
prices.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Bank has an obligation at the date of the consolidated
statement of financial position arising from a past event, and the costs to settle the obligation
are both probable and can be reliably measured.
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Income Tax
- Tax expense comprises current tax and deferred taxes.

- Current tax is based on taxable profits, which may differ from accounting profits published
in the financial statements. Accounting profits may include non-taxable profits or tax non-
deductible expenses which may be exempted in the current or subsequent financial years,
or accumulatted losses that are tax acceptable or items not subject to deduction for tax
purposes.

- Tax is calculated based on tax rates and laws that are applicable in Jordan.

- Deferred tax is the tax expected to be paid or recovered due to temporary differences
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
expected to be applied in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled,
based on the laws enacted or substantially enacted at the date of the consolidated statement
of financial position.

- The carrying values of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the date of the consolidated
financial statement and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount reported in the

consolidated statement of financial position, when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognized amounts and the Bank intends to either settle them on a net basis, or to realize
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Revenue and Expense Recognition

- Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate method except for fees and
interest on non-performing facilities and financing, on which interest is transferred to the
interest in suspense account and not recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

- Expenses are recognized on an accrual basis.

- Commission income is recognized upon the rendering of services. Dividend income is
recognized (when approved by the General Assembly).

Date of Recognition of Financial Assets
Purchase or sale of financial assets is recognized on the trade date, (the date that the Bank
commits to purchase or sell the asset).

Financial Derivatives and Hedge Accounting

Derivatives for Trading

The fair value of derivative financial instruments held for trading (such as future foreign
exchange contracts, future interest contracts, swaps contracts, foreign exchange rate option
rights) is recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position. Moreover, fair value is
determined at the prevailing market prices. If these prices are not available, the assessment
method should be mentioned, and the amount of changes in fair value should be recognized in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Repurchase and Resale Agreements

- Assets sold with a simultaneous commitment to repurchase them at a specified future date
will continue to be recognized in the Bank’s consolidated financial statements due to the
Bank’s control of these assets and the fact that continuing exposure to the risks and rewards
of these assets remains with the Bank and continue to be evaluated in accordance with the
applied accounting policies. The proceeds of the sale are recorded under loans and
borrowings. The difference between the sale and the repurchase price is recognized as an
interest expense over the agreement term using the effective interest rate method.

- Assets purchased with a corresponding commitment to resell at a specified future date are
not recognized in the Bank’s consolidated financial statements since the Bank is not able to
control these assets or the associated risks and benefits. The related payments are
recognized as part of deposits at banks and financial institutions or direct credit facilities as
applicable, and the difference between purchase and resale price is recognized as interest
income over the agreement term using the effective interest rate method.
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Assets Repossesed by the Bank

Assets seized by the Bank are shown in the consolidated condensed statement of financial
position, among other assets, at their current value when seized by the Bank or at their fair
value, whichever is lower. Furthermore, they are reassessed on the date of the consolidated
condensed financial statements, and any decrease in value is recorded as a loss in the
consolidated condensed statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income and the increase
in value is not recorded as revenue. In addition, any subsequent increase is taken to the
consolidated condensed statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income to the extent
that it does not exceed the previously recorded impairment value. A decleartion was issued
later for this circulation dated to September 2, 2021 No. 10/3/13246 to postponed the
activiation of this cirucaltion for a year, in order to complete the deduction of the required
provisions against the assets seized in violation of Article No.(48) of the Banking Law No. 28
for the year 2000 by (5%) of the total book values of these assets as of the year 2022 to reach
the required percentage of (50%) of these assets by the end of the year 2030.

Intangible Assets
- Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost.

- Intangible assets are classified as indefinite or with definite useful life. Intangible assets with
finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life, and amortization is recorded in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, using the straight-line metthod during a period not
exceeding 5 years from the date of the purchase transaction. Meanwhile, intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives are assessed for impairment at each reporting date, and
impairment losses are recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

- Internally generated intangible assets are not capitalized and are expensed in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

- Intangible assets include computer software, programs, Safwa Islamic Bank’s license and
customers’ deposits. The Bank’s management estimates the useful life for each intangible
asset, where the assets are amortized using the straight- line method from 3 to 7 years. As
for Safwa Bank’s license, its useful life is indefinite and it is not amortized.

Impairment of non-financial asset

- The carrying amount of the bank’s non-financial asset is reviewed at the end of each fiscal
year except for the deferred tax assets, to determine if there is an indication of impairment,
and if there is an indication of impairment, the amount recoverable from these assets will
be estimated.

- If the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the recoverable amount from those assets, the
impairment loss is recorded in these assets.

- The recoverable amount is the fair value of the asset - less cost of sales — or the value of
its use, whichever is greater.

- Allimpairment losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

- The impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed, for other assets, the impairment loss is
reversed only if the value of the carrying amount of the assets does not exceed the book
value that was determined after the depreciation or amortization has been reduced if the
impairment loss is not recognized in value.
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Business Combinations and Goodwill

- A business combination is registered using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at the acquisition
date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree.

- For each business combination, the Bank elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred and included in
administrative expenses in the consolidated profit or loss statement.

- Goodwill is measured at cost, which represents the excess of the amounts granted in addition
to the amount of non-controlling interests over the net fair value of the assets and liabilities
owned after deducting the impairment amount.

- When the Bank acquires a business, it reviews the financial assets and liabilities assumed
for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances, and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.

Investment in Associates

- Associates are those companies in which the Bank exerts an effective influence on their
financial and operational policy decisions, and that are not retained for trading. In this
regard, investments in associates are stated according to the equity method.

- Investments in associates are stated at cost within the statement of financial position, in
addition to the Bank's share of changes in the associate's net assets. The goodwell resulting
from investing in associates is recorded as part of the investment account of the associate
and is not amortized. Moreover, the Bank's share of the associates’ profits is recorded in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss . In the event of changes in the owners’ equity of
the associates, these changes, if any, are reflected in the Bank’s statement of changes in
owners’ equity. Profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Bank and the
associates are elimintated to the extent of the Bank's share in the associates.

Foreign Currencies

For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial position of
each entity of the Group are presented in the functional currency unit of the Bank and the
presentation currency of the consolidated financial statements.

The standalone financial statements of the Bank's subsidiaries are prepared. Moreover, the
standalone financial statements of each entity of the Group are presented in the functional
currency in which it operates. Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of
the Bank are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of those transactions.
At the balance sheet date, financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the rates of exchange prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value is determined. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost in a
foreign currency are not reclassified.

Exchange differences are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period
in which they arise except for:

e Foreign exchange differences on transactions made in order to hedge foreign exchange risk.

e Foreign exchange differences on monetary items required to / from a foreign operation that
are not planned to be settled, are unlikely to be settled in the near future (and therefore,
these differences form part of the net investment in the foreign operation), and are initially
recognized in the comprehensive income statement and reclassified from equity to the
income statement when selling or partially disposing of the net investment.
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In order to present the consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Bank's
foreign operations are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing at the statement of
financial position date. Income is also translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates change significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates
are used on the date of the transactions. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognized
in other consolidated statement of comprehensive income under a separate line item of equity.

When foreign operations are disposed of (i.e. disposal of the entire share of the Bank from
foreign operations, or resulting from loss of control of a subsidiary in foreign operations, or
partial exclusion by its share in a joint arrangement, or an associate company of a foreign
nature in which the share held is a financial asset), all foreign exchange differences
accumulated in a separate item under equity in respect of that transaction attributable to the
Bank’s owners are reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

In respect of the partial disposal of a subsidiary involving foreign operations that do not result
in the Bank losing control of the subsidiary, its share of the accumulated exchange differences
is credited to net comprehensive income at a rate that is derecognized and not recognized in
the consolidated statement of income. For all other partial liquidation (such as partial liquidation
of associates or joint ventures that do not result in the Bank losing significant influence or joint
control), the share of accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Leases

The Bank as a Lessee

The Bank assesses whether the contract contains lease when starting the contract. Moreover,
the Bank recognizes the right-of-use assets and the corresponding lease obligations in relation
to all lease arrangements to which the lessee is a party, except for short-term lease contracts
(defined as leases of 12 months or less) and low-value asset leases. For these contracts, the
Bank recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease, unless another regular basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which the economic benefits from the leased assets are utilized.

The lease obligation is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that were
not paid on the start date of the lease, and is discounted by using the price implicit in the lease.
If this rate cannot be easily determined, the Bank uses its expected incremental borrowing
rate.

The lease payments included in the rental obligation measurement include:

e Fixed rental payments (essentially including fixed payments), minus rental incentives
receivable;

e Variable rental payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or the rate at the date the contract begins.

e The amount expected to be paid by the lessee under the residual value guarantees.

e The price of the exercise of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain of the
exercise of the options; and

e Payment of the contract termination fines, if the lease reflects the exercise of the lease
termination option.

Rental obligations are presented as a separate note to the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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Subsecuently, lease obligations are subsequently measured by increasing the book value to
reflect the interest in the rental obligations (using the effective interest method) and by
reducing the book value to reflect the rental payments paid.

The lease obligations (and a similar adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) are

re-measured whenever:

e The lease term has changed or there is an event or important change in the conditions that
lead to a change in the exercise of the purchase option assessment, in which case the lease
obligations are re-measured by deducting the adjusted lease payment using the adjusted
discount rate.

e Lease payments change due to changes in an index, rate, or change in expected payments
under the guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease obligation is re-measured by
deducting the modified rental payments using a non-variable discount rate (unless the rental
payments change due to a change in the floating interest rate, in this case the adjusted
discount rate is used.

e The lease contract is adjusted, and the lease amendment is not accounted for as a separate
lease, in which case the lease obligation is re-measured based on the duration of the
adjusted lease contract by deducting the adjusted rental payments using the adjusted
discount rate at the actual price at the date of the amendment.

The Bank has not made any of these adjustments during the periods presented.

The right-of-use assets are depreciated over the life of the lease or the useful life of the asset
(whichever is shorter). If the lease contract transfers the ownership of the underlying asset or
the cost of the right to use, which reflects that the company expects to exercise the purchase
option, then the relevant value of the right to use is depreciated over the useful life of the
asset. Depreciation begins on the lease commencement date.

The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate note in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The Bank applies International Accounting Standard (36) to determine whether the value of
the right to use has decreased, and calculates any impairment losses as described in the policy
of "property and equipment".

Variable rents that are not dependent on an index or rate are not included in the measurement
of lease obligations and right-of-use assets. Related payments are recognized as an expense
in the period in which the event or condition that leads to these payments occurs, and are
included in "Other Expenditures" in the statement of profit or loss.

The Bank as a Lessor
The Bank enters into lease contracts as a lessor regarding some investment properties.

Leases in which the Bank is the lessor are classified as operating or finance leases. In the event
that the terms of the lease contract transfer all risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee,
the contract is classified as a finance lease, and all other leases are classified as operating
leases.

When the Bank is an intermediary lessor, it represents the main lease and sub-contract as two
separate contracts. The sublease contract is classified as finance or operating lease by
reference to the original right of use arising from the main lease.

Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the period of
the relevant lease. The primary direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the book value of the leased asset and are recognized on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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The amounts due from the lessee under finance leases are recognized as receivables with the
amount of the company's net investment in the rental contracts. Finance lease income is
allocated to the accounting periods to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Bank's
existing net investment with respect to lease contracts.

When the contract includes leasing components and components other than leasing, the Bank
applies IFRS 15 to distribute the amounts received or to be received under the contract for
each component.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash balances with central banks and
balances with banks and financial institutions that mature within three months, less banks’ and
financial institutions’ deposits that mature within three months and restricted balances.

. Adoption of new and revised Standards

. New and amended IFRS Standards that are effective for the current year

The following new and revised IFRSs, which became effective for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2021, have been adopted in these consolidated financial statements. The
application of these revised IFRSs has not had any material impact on the amounts reported
for the current and prior years but may affect the accounting for future transactions or
arrangements.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

In the prior year, the Group adopted the Phase 1 amendments Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform—Amendments to IFRS 9/IAS 39 and IFRS 7. These amendments modify specific hedge
accounting requirements to allow hedge accounting to continue for affected hedges during the
period of uncertainty before the hedged items or hedging instruments are amended as a result
of the interest rate benchmark reform.

In the current year, the Group adopted the Phase 2 amendments Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform—Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16. Adopting these
amendments enables the Group to reflect the effects of transitioning from interbank offered
rates (IBOR) to alternative benchmark interest rates (also referred to as ‘risk free rates’ or
RFRs) without giving rise to accounting impacts that would not provide useful information to
users of financial statements.

The amendments also introduce new disclosure requirements to IFRS 7 for hedging
relationships that are subject to the exceptions introduced by the amendments to IFRS 9.

Moving from LIBOR to risk-free interest rates

Based on the changes imposed by the market on the use of the LIBOR index, and in keeping
with global economic developments, the bank started, during the year, the stages of adopting
the proposed RFR, by reviewing all facilities and investments, and studying the impact of the
base rate change on them. From preparing the banking and accounting systems for the
purposes of a successful transition to other alternative indicators.

The value of contracts for which the reference interest rate is expected to be modified in the
future, as of December 31, 2021, amounted to JD 13,205,664. The impact of the expected
adjustments on the reference prices was studied, and there was no material impact on the
amounts and disclosures contained in the consolidated financial statements for any of the first
and second stage adjustments, as the group’s financial instruments are not linked to the
interbank borrowing rate (IBOR).
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COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond June 30, 2021 - Amendment to IFRS 16

In the prior year, the Group early adopted Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to
IFRS 16) that provided practical relief to lessees in accounting for rent concessions occurring
as a direct consequence of COVID-19, by introducing a practical expedient to IFRS 16. This
practical expedient was available to rent concessions for which any reduction in lease payments
affected payments originally due on or before June 30, 2021.

In March 2021, the Board issued Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond June 30, 2021
(Amendment to IFRS 16) that extends the practical expedient to apply to reduction in lease
payments originally due on or before June 30, 2022.

The practical expedient permits a lessee to elect not to assess whether a COVID-19-related
rent concession is a lease modification. A lessee that makes this election shall account for any
change in lease payments resulting from the COVID-19-related rent concession applying IFRS
16 as if the change were not a lease modification.

The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of
COVID-19 and only if all of the following conditions are met:

e The change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is
substantially the same as, orless than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding
the change

e Any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June
2022 (a rent concession meets this condition if it results in reduced lease payments on or
before 30 June 2022 and increased lease payments that extend beyond 30 June 2022)

e There is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease

The adoption has not had any material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported
in these consolidated financial statements as the Group did not have any leases impacted by
the amendment.
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b. New and Revised Standards in issue but not yet effective
At the date of authorization of these consolidated financial statements, the Group has not
applied the following new and revised IFRS Standards that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

New and revised IFRSs

Effective date

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (including the June 2020 amendments
to IFRS 17)

IFRS 17 establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts and supersedes
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts.

IFRS 17 outlines a general model, which is modified for insurance
contracts with direct participation features, described as the variable
fee approach. The general model is simplified if certain criteria are
met by measuring the liability for remaining coverage using the
premium allocation approach.

The general model uses current assumptions to estimate the
amount, timing and uncertainty of future cash flows and it explicitly
measures the cost of that uncertainty. It takes into account market
interest rates and the impact of policyholders’ options and
guarantees.

In June 2020, the Board issued Amendments to IFRS 17 to address
concerns and implementation challenges that were identified after
IFRS 17 was published. The amendments defer the date of initial
application of IFRS 17 (incorporating the amendments) to annual
reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023. At the same
time, the Board issued Extension of the Temporary Exemption from
Applying IFRS 9 (Amendments to IFRS 4) that extends the fixed
expiry date of the temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9 in
IFRS 4 to annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1,
2023.

For the purpose of the transition requirements, the date of initial
application is the start of the annual reporting period in which the
entity first applies the Standard, and the transition date is the
beginning of the period immediately preceding the date of initial
application.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture.

The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 deal with situations where
there is a sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. Specifically, the amendments state that
gains or losses resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary that
does not contain a business in a transaction with an associate or a
joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method, are
recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in that associate or joint venture.
Similarly, gains and losses resulting from the remeasurement of
investments retained in any former subsidiary (that has become an
associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity
method) to fair value are recognised in the former parent’s profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the
new associate or joint venture.
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New and revised IFRSs

Effective date

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements -
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

The amendments to IAS 1 affect only the presentation of liabilities
as current or non-current in the statement of financial position and
not the amount or timing of recognition of any asset, liability,
income or expenses, or the information disclosed about those items.

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities as current
or noncurrent is based on rights that are in existence at the end of
the reporting period, specify that classification is unaffected by
expectations about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement of a liability, explain that rights are in existence if
covenants are complied with at the end of the reporting period, and
introduce a definition of ‘settlement’ to make clear that settlement
refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity
instruments, other assets or services to the opposite party.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations — Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments update IFRS 3 so that it refers to the 2018
Conceptual Framework instead of the 1989 Framework. They also
add to IFRS 3 a requirement that, for obligations within the scope
of IAS 37, an acquirer applies IAS 37 to determine whether at the
acquisition date a present obligation exists as a result of past events.
For a levy that would be within the scope of IFRIC 21 Levies, the
acquirer applies IFRIC 21 to determine whether the obligating event
that gives rise to a liability to pay the levy has occurred by the
acquisition date.

Finally, the amendments add an explicit statement that an acquirer
does not recognise contingent assets acquired in a business
combination.

Amendments to IAS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment—Proceeds
before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items
produced before that asset is available for use, i.e. proceeds while
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Consequently, an entity recognises such sales proceeds and related
costs in profit or loss. The entity measures the cost of those items
in accordance with IAS 2 “Inventories”.

The amendments also clarify the meaning of “testing” whether an
asset is functioning properly”. IAS 16 now specifies this as assessing
whether the technical and physical performance of the asset is such
that it is capable of being used in the production or supply of goods
or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes.

If not presented separately in the statement of comprehensive
income, the financial statements shall disclose the amounts of
proceeds and cost included in profit or loss that relate to items
produced that are not an output of the entity’s ordinary activities,
and which line item(s) in the statement of comprehensive income
include(s) such proceeds and cost.

The amendments are applied retrospectively, but only to items of
property, plant and equipment that are brought to the location and
condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management on or after the beginning of the
earliest period presented in the financial statements in which the
entity first applies the amendments.

The entity shall recognise the cumulative effect of initially applying
the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings (or other component of equity, as appropriate) at
the beginning of that earliest period presented.
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New and revised IFRSs

Effective date

Amendments to IAS 37 - Onerous Contracts—Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract

The amendments specify that the “cost of fulfilling” a contract
comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that
relate directly to a contract consist of both the incremental costs of
fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour or materials)
and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling
the contract).

The amendments apply to contracts for which the entity has not yet
fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which the entity first applies the amendments.
Comparatives are not restated. Instead, the entity shall recognise
the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings or other
component of equity, as appropriate, at the date of initial
application.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020

Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards

The amendment provides additional relief to a subsidiary which
becomes a first-time adopter later than its parent in respect of
accounting for cumulative translation differences. As a result of the
amendment, a subsidiary that uses the exemption in IFRS 1:D16 (a)
can now also elect to measure cumulative translation differences for
all foreign operations at the carrying amount that would be included
in the parent’s consolidated financial statements, based on the
parent’s date of transition to IFRS Standards, if no adjustments were
made for consolidation procedures and for the effects of the business
combination in which the parent acquired the subsidiary. A similar
election is available to an associate or joint venture that uses the
exemption in IFRS 1:D16 (a).

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
The amendment clarifies that in applying the “10 percent” test to
assess whether to derecognise a financial liability, an entity includes
only fees paid or received between the entity (the borrower) and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the
lender on the other’s behalf.

The amendment is applied prospectively to modifications and

exchanges that occur on or after the date the entity first applies the
amendment.
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New and revised IFRSs

Effective date

IFRS 16 Leases
The amendment removes the illustration of the reimbursement of
leasehold improvements.

IAS 41 Agriculture

The amendment removes the requirement in IAS 41 for entities to
exclude cash flows for taxation when measuring fair value. This
aligns the fair value measurement in IAS 41 with the requirements
of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement to use internally consistent cash
flows and discount rates and enables preparers to determine
whether to use pretax or post-tax cash flows and discount rates for
the most appropriate fair value measurement.

The amendment is applied prospectively, i.e. for fair value
measurements on or after the date an entity initially applies the
amendment.

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IFRS
Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements

- Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The amendments change the requirements in IAS 1 with regard to
disclosure of accounting policies. The amendments replace all
instances of the term “significant accounting policies” with ‘material
accounting policy information’. Accounting policy information is
material if, when considered together with other information
included in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements.

The supporting paragraphs in IAS 1 are also amended to clarify that
accounting policy information that relates to immaterial
transactions, other events or conditions is immaterial and need not
be disclosed. Accounting policy information may be material because
of the nature of the related transactions, other events or conditions,
even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting
policy information relating to material transactions, other events or
conditions is itself material.

The Board has also developed guidance and examples to explain and
demonstrate the application of the “four-step materiality process”
described in IFRS Practice Statement 2.

Amendments to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors - Definition of Accounting Estimates
The amendments replace the definition of a change in accounting
estimates with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new
definition, accounting estimates are "monetary amounts in financial
statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”.
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January 1, 2023, with
earlier application
permitted



New and revised IFRSs Effective date
The definition of a change in accounting estimates was deleted.
However, the Board retained the concept of changes in accounting
estimates in the Standard with the following clarifications:
e A change in accounting estimate that results from new
information or new developments is not the correction of an
error

e The effects of a change in an input or a measurement technique
used to develop an accounting estimate are changes in
accounting estimates if they do not result from the correction of
prior period errors

The Board added two examples (4-5) to the Guidance on
implementing IAS 8, which accompanies the Standard. The Board
has deleted one example (Example 3) as it could cause confusion in
light of the amendments.

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes - Deferred Tax related to January 1, 2023, with
Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction earlier application
The amendments introduce a further exception from the initial permitted

recognition exemption. Under the amendments, an entity does not

apply the initial recognition exemption for transactions that give rise

to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

Depending on the applicable tax law, equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences may arise on initial recognition of an asset
and liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit. For example, this may
arise upon recognition of a lease liability and the corresponding
right-of-use asset applying IFRS 16 at the commencement date of a
lease.

Following the amendments to IAS 12, an entity is required to
recognise the related deferred tax asset and liability, with the
recognition of any deferred tax asset being subject to the
recoverability criteria in IAS 12.

The Board also adds an illustrative example to IAS 12 that explains
how the amendments are applied.

The amendments apply to transactions that occur on or after the
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented. In addition,
at the beginning of the earliest comparative period an entity
recognises:

o A deferred tax asset (to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be utilised) and a deferred tax liability for all
deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with:

- Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

- Decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities and the
corresponding amounts recognised as part of the cost of the
related asset

e The cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings (or other
component of equity, as appropriate) at that date.

Management anticipates that these new standards, interpretations and amendments will be
adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial statements as and when they are applicable and
adoption of these new standards, interpretations and amendments, may have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group in the period of initial application.

- 44 -



4. Significant Accounting Judgments and key Sources of Uncertainty Estimates

Preparation of the consolidated financial statements and application of accounting policies
require management to make judgments, estimates, and assumptions that affect the amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities, and to disclose potential liabilities. Moreover, these
estimates and judgments affect revenues, expenses, and provisions, in general; as well as
expected credit losses and changes in fair value that appear in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and within shareholders' equity. In particular, the Bank's management
requires judgments to be made to estimate the amounts and timing of future cash flows. These
estimates are necessarily based on multiple hypotheses and factors with varying degrees of
estimation and uncertainty. Meanwhile, the actual results may differ from estimates due to the
changes arising from the conditions and circumstances of those estimates in the future.

Judgments, estimates, and assumptions are reviewed periodically. Moreover, the effect of the
change in estimates is recognized in the financial period in which the change occurs if the change
affects only the financial period. On the other hand, the effect of the change in estimates is
recognized in the financial period in which the change occurs and in future periods if the change
affects the financial period and future financial periods.

We believes that its estimates in the consolidated financial statements are reasonable. The
details are as follows:

Impairment of Property Acquired

Impairment in the value of properties acquired is recognized based on recent real estate
valuations by qualified independent evaluators for calculating the asset impairment, which is
reviewed periodically. Any decrease in its value is recorded as a loss in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income, and the increase is not recorded as
revenue.

According to the Central Bank of Jordan’s Circular No. 10/3/13246 dated September 2, 2021 at
a rate of (5%) of the total book value of these properties (regardless of the violation period)
from the year 2021 until the required percentage is reached (50%) of these properties by the
end of the year 2030.

Productive lifespan of tangible assets and intangible assets

The Bank’s management periodically recalculates the useful lives of tangible assets and
intangible assets for calculating annual depreciation and amortization based on the general
condition of those assets and estimated future useful lives. The impairment loss is recognized in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year.

Income tax
The fiscal year is charged with income tax expense in accordance with accounting regulations,
laws, and standards. Moreover, deferred tax assets, liabilities, and provision are recognized.

Provision for lawsuits

A provision for lawsuits is taken to meet any legal obligations that might arise based on the legal
study prepared by the Bank’s legal advisor. The study identifies risks that might occur in the
future, and is reviewed periodically.

Provision for end- of- service indemnity
The provision for end- of- service indemnity, representing the Bank's obligations to employees,
is calculated in accordance with the Bank's internal regulations.

Assets and liabilities at cost
Management reviews the assets and liabilities at cost for estimating any impairment in value,
which is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year.
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Provision for expected credit losses

Management is required to use significant judgments and estimates to estimate the amounts
and timing of future cash flows and assess the risks of a significant increase in credit risk for
financial assets after initial recognition and future measurement information for the expected
credit losses. The most important policies and estimates used by the Bank's management are
detailed in Note (44).

When calculating the credit losses against credit exposures, the calculation results according to
IFRS 9 are compared with those according to the Central Bank of Jordan Instructions No.
(2009/47) dated December 10, 2009 for each stage individually, and the tougher results are
taken. The credit instruments issued / guaranteed by the Jordanian Government, in addition to
any other credit exposures with / guaranteed by the Jordanian government are excluded from
the calculation.

Evaluation of business model

The classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the principal
and interest payments test on the principal outstanding and the business model test. The Bank
defines a business model at a level that reflects how the groups of financial assets are managed
together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgment that
reflects all relevant evidence, including how to assess the performance of the assets and measure
their performance, and the risks that affect the performance of assets, how they are managed,
and how asset managers are compensated. The Bank monitors financial assets measured at
amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income and derecognized before
maturity to understand the reason for derecognition and whether the reasons are consistent with
the objective of the business held. In this respect, control is part of the Group's continuous
assessment of whether the business model under which the remaining financial assets are
retained is appropriate, and whether it is not appropriate if there is a change in the business
model, and therefore, a future change is made in the classification of those assets.

Significant increase in credit risk

The expected credit loss is measured as an allowance equivalent to the expected credit loss of
(12) months for the assets of the first stage, or the credit loss over the life of the assets of the
second or third stage. The asset moves to the second stage if credit risk increases significantly
since initial recognition. IFRS (9) does not specify what constitutes a significant increase in credit
risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of any asset has increased significantly, the Bank takes
into account reasonable and reliable quantitative and qualitative information. The estimates and
uses by the Bank's management relating to the significant change in credit risk that result in a
change in classification within the three stages (1, 2 and 3) are shown in details in Note (44).

Establishment of groups of assets with similar credit risk characteristics

When the expected credit losses are measured on a collective basis, the financial instruments
are grouped on the basis of common risk characteristics (e.g. instrument type, credit risk,
collateral type, initial recognition date, remaining maturity period, industry, borrower's
geographic location, etc.). The Bank monitors the appropriateness of credit risk characteristics
on an ongoing basis to assess whether they are still similar. This is required to ensure that, in
the event of a change in the credit risk characteristics, the asset is properly reallocated. This
may result in the creation of new portfolios or the transfer of assets to an existing portfolio that
better reflects the credit risk characteristics of that group of assets.

Re-division of portfolios and movements between portfolios

The re-division of portfolios and movements between portfolios is more common when credit
risk increases significantly (or when such a large increase is reflected). Therefore, assets are
transferred from expected credit losses of between (12) months to another portfolio or vice
versa. However, this may happen within the portfolios that continue to be measured on the same
basis as expected credit losses for a period of (12) months or a lifetime, but the amount of credit
loss changes are expected due to the varying credit risk of portfolios.
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Models and assumptions used

The Bank uses various models and assumptions in measuring the fair value of financial assets
as well as in assessing the expected credit loss described in Note (44). The judgment is applied
when determining the best models for each type of asset as well as for the assumptions used in
those models, which include assumptions regarding the main drivers of credit risk.

a. Classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities

C.

The Bank classifies financial instruments or components of financial assets at initial
recognition either as a financial asset or a financial liability, or as a title in accordance with
the substance of the contractual agreements and the definition of the instrument. The
reclassification of a financial instrument is subject to the substance of the consolidated
financial statements and not to its legal form.

The Bank shall determine the classification at initial recognition as well as a reassessment of
such determination, if possible and appropriate, at each date of the consolidated statement
of financial position.

When measuring financial assets and liabilities, some of the Bank's assets and liabilities are
re-measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In assessing the fair value of any
assets or liabilities, the Bank uses available observable market data. In the absence of Tier 1
inputs, the Bank conducts evaluations, using professionally qualified independent evaluators.
Moreover, the Bank works closely with qualified external evaluators to develop appropriate
valuation and data valuation techniques.

. Fair value measurement

If the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities included in the consolidated
statement of financial position cannot be obtained from active markets, these fair values are
determined using a range of valuation techniques involving the use of accounting models. If
possible, the data entered from those models will be obtained from market data. In the
absence of such market data, fair values are determined by making judgments. These
provisions include liquidity considerations and model data such as derivative volatility, longer-
term discount rates, pre-payment ratios and default rates on asset-backed securities.
Management believes that the valuation techniques used are appropriate to determine the
fair value of financial instruments.

Derivative financial instruments

The fair values of derivative financial instruments measured at fair value are generally
obtained by reference to quoted market prices, discounted cash flow models and, where
appropriate, recognized pricing models. In the absence of prices, fair values are determined
using valuation techniques that reflect observable market data. These techniques include
comparison with similar instruments at observable market prices, discounted cash flow
analysis, pricing option models, and other valuation techniques commonly used by market
participants. The main factors that the Administration takes into consideration when applying
the model are:

- The expected timing and probability of future cash flows on the instrument where such
cash flows are generally subject to the terms of the instrument, although the management
judgment may be required where the counterparty's ability to repay the instrument in
accordance with the contractual terms is doubtful; and

- An appropriate discount rate for the instrument. Management determines the instrument
discount rare at a rate higher than the non-risk rate. In assessing the instrument by
reference to comparative instruments, management considers the maturity, structure and
degree of classification of the instrument based on the system in which the existing position
is compared. When evaluating tools on a model basis using the fair value of the main
components, management also considers the need to make adjustments for a number of
factors, such as bid differences, credit status, portfolio service costs, and uncertainty about
the model.
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Lease Extension and Termination Options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of leases. These conditions are used
to increase operational flexibility in terms of contract management. Most of the held extension
and termination options are renewable by both the Bank and the lessor.

Determination the Lease Term

When determining the term of a lease, management considers all facts and circumstances that
create an economic incentive for the option to extend, or the option not to terminate, the lease.
The extension options (or periods following the termination options) are only included in the
term of the lease if it is reasonably certain that that the lease will be extended (or not
terminated). The evaluation is reviewed in the case of an important event or a significant change
in the circumstances that affect this evaluation and that are under the control of the lessee.

Key Sources of Uncertainty Estimates

The main principal estimates used by management in applying the Bank's accounting policies
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial
statements are as follows:

Determining the number and relative weight of scenarios of the outlook for each type of
product / market and the identification of future information relevant to each scenario

When measuring the expected credit loss, the Bank uses reasonable and supported future
information based on the assumptions of the future movement of the various economic engines
and how these affect each other.

Probability of default

The potential for default is a key input in measuring the expected credit loss. The probability
of default is an estimate of the probability of default over a given period of time, which includes
the calculation of historical data, assumptions and expectations relating to future
circumstances.

Loss given default

Loss on the assumption of default is an estimate of the loss arising from default. It is based on
the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the financer expects to
collect, taking into account cash flows from collateral and integrated credit adjustments.

Fair value measurement and valuation procedures

When estimating the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, the Bank uses available
observable market data. In the absence of level (1) inputs, the Bank conducts evaluations using
appropriate valuation models to determine the fair value of financial instruments.

Discounting rental payments

Lease payments are discounted using the Bank's incremental borrowing rate ("IBR").
Management applied the judgments and estimates to determine the incremental borrowing rate
at the start of the lease.
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5. Cash and Balances at the Central Bank of Jordan

The details of this item are as follows:

Cash in treasury

Balances at central bank of Jordan:
Current accounts and demand deposits
Term and notice deposits

Statutory cash reserve

Total balances at the central bank of Jordan

Total

December 31,

2021 2020
D plo}
125,176,533 101,051,657
265,155,626 269,306,430

315,000,000 165,000,000

229,098,309 185,702,345
809,253,935 620,008,775
934,430,468 721,060,432

- Except for the statutory cash reserve , there are no restricted balances as of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020.

- There are no accrued amounts during a period exceeding three months as of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020.

- All balances at the Central Bank of Jordan are classified within stage 1 based on the requirements of IFRS (9). There are also no transfers between Stages (1,2,3) or written-off balances

during the year ended December 31, 2021.

- Disclosure on the movements of the Central Bank of Jordan's balances:

Balance - beginning of the year
New balances during the year
Paid balances

Balance - end of the year

6. Balances at Banks and Financial Institutions

The details of this item are as follows:

Description

Current accounts and demand deposits

Deposits maturing within 3 months or less

Total

Provision for expected credit loss

Balance at Bank and financial institutions

- Non-interest bearing balances at banks and financial institutions amounted to JD 55,348,360 as of December 31, 2021 (JD 46,289,804 as of December 31, 2020).

December 31

2021 2020

D plo}
620,008,775 503,730,148
354,245,160 202,978,627

(165,000,000) 86,700,000)

809,253,935 620,008,775

Local Banks and Financial Institutions

December 31

Foreign Banks and Financial Institutions

December 31,

Total

December 31

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
D plo} plo} D D D
443,162 623,596 239,619,091 162,452,001 240,062,253 163,075,597
10,000,000 20,000,000 291,974,566 214,198,613 301,974,566 234,198,613
10,443,162 20,623,596 531,593,657 376,650,614 542,036,819 397,274,210
- - (560,112 (189,682 (560,112) (189,682)
10,443,162 20,623,596 531,033,545 376,460,932 541,476,707 397,084,528

- Restricted balances at banks and financial institutions amounted to JD 7,548,214 as of December 31, 2021 and (JD 7,545,767 as of December 31, 2020).

- The movement on balances at banks and financial institutions is as follows:

Balance - beginning of the year
New balances during the year

Paid balances during the year
Changes resulted from adjustments

Balance - End of the Year

Balance - beginning of the year
New balances during the year
Paid balances during the year

Balance - End of the Year

2021
Stage (1) Stage (2)
Individual Individual Stage (3) Total
D plo} plo} D
397,274,210 - - 397,274,210
422,775,611 - - 422,775,611
(276,450,530) - - (276,450,530)
(1,562,472) - - (1,562,472)
542,036,819 - - 542,036,819
2020
Stage (1) Stage (2)
Individual Individual Stage (3) Total
D plo} plo} D
331,017,085 - - 331,017,085

336,335,033 -

(270,077,908) -

- 336,335,033

- (270,077,908)

397,274,210 -

- 397,274,210
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- The following represents the movement on the provision for impairment loss:

Balance - beginning of the year 2021
Impairment on the new balances during the year
Recovered from impairment on the paid balances
Transferred to stage (1)

Transferred to stage (2)

Transferred to stage (3)

Effect on provision during the year due to the change
in the Classifications between stages

Changes resulted from adjustments
Written off balances and deposits

Adjustments due to changes in the exchange rates

Total Balance at the End of the Year

Balance - beginning of the year 2020
Impairment on the new balances during the year
Recovered from impairment on the paid balances
Transferred to stage (1)

Transferred to stage (2)

Transferred to stage (3)

Effect on the impairment loss during the year due to
the change in the Classifications between stages

Changes resulted from adjustments
Written off balances and deposits

Adjustments due to change in the exchange rates
Total Balance at the End of the Year

7. Deposits at Banks and Financial Institutions
The details of this item are as follows:

Deposits maturing during the period:
More than 3 months to 6 months
More than 6 months to 9 months
Total Balances
Provision for expected credit losses

Net Deposits at bank and financial institutions

December 31, 2021

Stage (1) Stage (2) Stage (3) Total
b D b D
189,682 - - 189,682
560,111 - - 560,111
(189,681) - - (189,681)
560,112 - - 560,112
December 31, 2020
Stage (1) Stage (2) Stage (3) Total
b D b D
211,356 - - 211,356
189,682 - - 189,682
(211,356) - - (211,356)
189,682 - - 189,682

Local Banks and
Financial Institutions

Foreign Banks and
Financial Institutions

Total

December 31,

December 31,

December 31,

- The movement on deposits at banks and financial institutions:

Balance - beginning of the year
New balances during the year
Paid balances during the year

Balance - End of the Year

Balance - beginning of the year
New balances during the year
Paid balances during the year

Balance - End of the Year

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
b D b D D D
- - 2,771,936 1,449,068 2,771,936 1,449,068
6,000,000 3,000,000 - - 6,000,000 3,000,000
6,000,000 3,000,000 2,771,936 1,449,068 8,771,936 4,449,068
- - (1,251) (611) (1,251) (611)
6,000,000 3,000,000 2,770,685 1,448,457 8,770,685 4,448,457
2021

Stage (1) Stage (2)
Individual Individual Stage (3) Total

b D b D
4,449,068 - - 4,449,068
8,771,936 - - 8,771,936
(4,449,068) - - (4,449,068)
8,771,936 - - 8,771,936

2020

Stage (1) Stage (2)
Individual Individual Stage (3) Total

b D b D
3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
4,449,068 - - 4,449,068
(3,000,000) - - (3,000,000)
4,449,068 - - 4,449,068
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- The following represents the movement on the provision for impairment loss:

Balance - beginning of the year 2021
Impairment of the new balances during the year
Recovered from impairment on the paid balances
Transferred to stage (1)

Transferred to stage (2)

Transferred to stage (3)

Effect on provision -at the end of the year- due to
The change in classification between stages
Changes resulted from adjustments

Written off balances and deposits

Adjustments due to change in the exchange rates

Balance - End of the Year

Balance - beginning of the year 2020

Impairment of the new balances during the year
Recovered from impairment on the paid balances
Transferred to stage (1)

Transferred to stage (2)

Transferred to stage (3)

Effect on provision -at the end of the year - due to
The change in classification between stages
Changes resulted from adjustments

Written off balances and deposits

Adjustments due to changes in the exchange rates

Balance - End of the Year

December 31, 2021

Stage (1) Stage (2) Stage (3) Total
D D D D
611 611
1,251 1,251
(611) (611)
1,251 1,251
December 31, 2020
Stage (1) Stage (2) Stage (3) Total
D D D D
611 611
611 - 611
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8. Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

The details of this item are as follows:

Government bonds listed in financial markets
Corporate bonds listed in financial markets
Corporate shares listed in financial markets
Investment funds

Total

9. Direct Credit and Financing Facilities - Net
The details of this item are as follows:

Individuals (retail):
Overdraft accounts

Loans and promissory notes*
Credit cards

Real estate loans

Large Companies

Overdraft accounts

Loans and promissory notes *
Small and Medium
Overdraft accounts

Loans and promissory notes *

Government and public sector
Total
Less: Interest and revenue in suspense
Less: Provision of expected credit losses
Net Direct Credit and Financing Facilities

December 31,

2021 2020
D D
143,948 78,294
1,512,207 1,463,324
3,275,739 5,667,508
13,364,472 8,010,770
18,296,366 15,219,896
December 31,
2021 2020
D D
1,794,970 2,481,742
821,425,508 691,793,785
17,807,394 14,494,456
897,926,656 783,136,250
66,202,150 81,996,125

1,046,668,567

1,100,136,150

24,662,480 25,149,124
201,854,139 176,403,540
431,243,828 212,514,816

3,509,585,692 3,088,105,988

16,920,366 16,995,241
141,540,998 119,482,614

3,351,124,328

2,951,628,133

* Net after deducting interest and commission received in advance of JD 5,395,416 as of December 31, 2021

(JD 5,057,807 as of December 31, 2020).

- Direct credit and financing facilities included in stage (3) amounted to JD 130,919,534 which is equivalent
to 3.73% of total direct credit and financing facilities as of December 31, 2021 (JD 118,245,398 which is

equivalent to 3.83% of total direct credit and financing facilities as of December 31, 2020).

- Direct credit and financing facilities included in stage (3) amounted to JD 113,999,168 which is equivalent
to 3.26 % of total direct credit facilities balance after deducting interest and revenue in suspense
as of December 31, 2021 (JD 101,250,157, which is equivalent to 3.30% of total credit facilities balance
after deducting interest and revenue in suspense as of December 31, 2020).

- Direct credit facilities granted to and guaranteed by the Government of the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan
amounted to JD 323,740,585 which is equivalent to 9.22% of total direct credit facilities as of December 31,
2021 (JD 305,008,749 which is equivalent to 9.88% as of December 31, 2020).

- The facilities according to the Islamic Share'a related to Safwa Islamic Bank amounted to JD 1,635,040,078
which is equivalent to 46.59% of total direct credit facilities as of December 31, 2021 (JD 1,193,020,390

which is equivalent to 38.63% as of December 31, 2020).
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The movement on the credit and financing facilities on a collective basis as of the year end:

Balance - beginning of the year
New exposures during the year
Exposures paid during the year
Transferred to stage (1)
Transferred to stage (2)

Transferred to stage (3)

Effect on the volume of exposures due to changes in
the classifications between stages

Change resulted from adjustments

Written-off credit facilities or transferred as off balance
sheet items

Balance - end of the year

Balance - beginning of the year
New exposures during the year
Exposures paid during the year
Transferred to stage (1)
Transferred to stage (2)

Transferred to stage (3)
Effect on the volume of exposures due to changes in
the classifications between stages

Change resulted from adjustments
Written-off credit facilities or transferred as off balance
sheet items

Balance - end of the year

2021
Stage (1) Stage (2)
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage (3) Total
D D D D D D
2,023,885,152 572,632,425 342,616,631 30,726,382 118,245,398 3,088,105,988
750,278,160 236,184,831 76,916,417 11,684,408 5,589,877 1,080,653,693
(302,786,525) (43,112,125) (53,793,088) (2,796,948) (14,706,179) (417,194,865)
59,840,822 786,149 (56,175,283) (786,102) (3,665,586) -
(136,611,567) (32,188,318) 140,087,906 32,796,228 (4,084,249) -
(6,554,449) (4,952,724) (25,374,658) (1,692,361) 38,574,192 -
(17,996,645) (266,360) (12,736,601) (2,953,445) 584,624 (33,368,427)
(133,333,419) (57,433,758) (6,477,291) (1,747,686) (1,219,260) (200,211,414)
— - - - (8,399,283) (8,399,283)
2,236,721,529 671,650,120 405,064,033 65,230,476 130,919,534 3,509,585,692
2020
Stage (1) Stage (2)
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage (3) Total
D D D D D D

1,873,654,487 442,937,612 285,111,909 31,396,579 116,450,626 2,749,551,213
462,236,817 177,653,092 60,697,305 9,149,588 8,154,253 717,891,055
(211,071,360) (25,168,082) (36,057,970) (1,845,521) (5,471,781) (279,614,714)
61,109,447 11,524,200 (60,143,204) (11,487,602) (1,002,841) -
(121,613,716) (2,934,877) 122,689,573 3,991,464 (2,132,444) -
(10,947,692) (1,033,392) (11,245,382) (1,066,122) 24,292,588 -
88,053 (1,083,003) (12,539,614) (230,859) (221,511) (13,986,934)
(29,570,884) (29,263,125) (5,895,986) 818,855 (4,109,527) (68,020,667)
- - - - (17,713,965) (17,713,965)
2,023,885,152 572,632,425 342,616,631 30,726,382 118,245,398 3,088,105,988

- During the year ended December 31, 2021, an amount of JD 7,679,135 was transferred to off-statement of financial position items (JD 14,822,171 as of December 31, 2020), and direct credi

facilities of JD 720,148 were written off according to the Board of Directors' decision regarding this matter (JD 2,891,794 as of December 31, 2020).
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The movement on the expected credit loss for credit and financing facilities was as follows:

For the Year ended December 31, 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year

Impairment on new Credit facilities during the year
Recovered from Impairment on paid credit facilities
Transferred to stage (1)

Transferred to stage (2)

Transferred to stage (3)

Effect on the impairment losses due to changes in
the classifications between stages

Effect due to adjustments
Written-off credit facilities or transferred

Balance at the End of the Year

Redistribution:
Provision on an Individual basis

Provision on a collective basis

For the Year ended December 31, 2020

Balance at the beginning of the year

Impairment on new credit facilities during the year
Recovered from impairment on paid credit facilities
Transferred to stage (1)

Transferred to stage (2)

Transferred to stage (3)

Effect on the impairment losses due to changes in
the classifications between stages

Changes resulted from adjustments

Written-off credit facilities or transferred

Balance at the End of the Year

Redistribution:
Provision on an Individual basis

Provision on a collective basis

Corporations

Real Estate Governmental
Individual Loans Large Corporate SME's and Public Sector Total
o] D D D D D

25,401,230 14,336,802 67,069,526 12,675,056 - 119,482,614
4,294,530 2,592,837 13,173,332 2,691,006 ) 22,751,705
(3,544,806) (2,813,721) (9,924,727) (1,584,591) ) (17,867,845)
1,838,768 816,969 (108,871) (78,919) ) 2,467,947
570,129 (568,155) (5,067,934) (13,859) ) (5,079,819)
(2,408,897) (248,814) 5,176,805 92,778 ) 2,611,872
4,790,917 84,891 7,449,335 1,021,510 ’ 13,346,653
652,814 (1,133,266) 10,339,158 (445,341) - 9,413,365
(2,114,745) (363,585) (2,594,479) (512,685) ] (5,585,494)
29,479,940 12,703,958 85,512,145 13,844,955 } 141,540,998
27,004,054 12,703,784 85,512,145 13,167,915 - 138,387,898
2,475,886 174 - 677,040 - 3,153,100
29,479,940 12,703,958 85,512,145 13,844,955 - 141,540,998
16,806,351 8,438,426 61,873,990 9,708,250 189,784 97,016,801
3,345,252 449,582 4,871,545 1,403,202 . 10,069,581
(1,323,682) (273,618) (3,355,349) (576,193) . (5,528,842)
590,181 156,753 346,280 22,126 . 1,115,340
252,780 (16,189) (1,161,016) 11,264 . (913,161)
(842,961) (140,564) 814,736 (33,390) . (202,179)
4,922,881 2,963,848 3,327,599 2,008,715 . 13,223,043
1,675,930 2,774,879 13,503,004 2,188,585 (189,784) 19,952,614
(25,502) (16,315) (13,151,263) (2,057,503) ] (15,250,583)
25,401,230 14,336,802 67,069,526 12,675,056 } 119,482,614
24,527,804 14,336,750 67,069,526 12,502,541 - 118,436,621
873,426 52 - 172,515 - 1,045,993
25,401,230 14,336,802 67,069,526 12,675,056 - 119,482,614

The value of the provisions that were no longer needed as a result of debt settlements and transferred to other debts amounted to JD 17,867,845

December 31, 2021 ( JD 5,528,842 as of December 31, 2020).

- 54 -

as of



Interest and revenue in Suspense

The following is the movement on interest and revenue in suspense:
Corporate Entities

Government and

Individual Real estate loans Corporate SMEs Public Sector Total
D D D D D D
For the Year ended December 31, 2021
Balance - beginning of the year 4,120,410 2,935,998 7,655,932 2,282,901 16,995,241
Add: Interest and returns suspended during the year 1,935,720 427,845 1,342,528 752,560 4,458,653
Less: Interest and returns transferred to revenues (672,700) (455,395) (508,584) (83,060) (1,719,739)
Written-off suspended interest (1,280,833) (437,295) (782,166) (313,495) (2,813,789)
Balance at the End of the Year 4,102,597 2,471,153 7,707,710 2,638,906 16,920,366
For the Year ended December 31, 2020
Balance - beginning of the year 3,240,079 2,423,484 9,312,423 1,707,055 16,683,041
Add: Interest and returns suspended during the year 1,621,969 646,343 1,280,781 836,422 4,385,515
Less: Interest and returns transferred to revenues (708,029) (108,749) (738,822) (54,334) (1,609,934)
Written-off suspended interest (33,609) (25,080) (2,198,450) (206,243) (2,463,381)
Balance at the End of the Year 4,120,410 2,935,998 7,655,932 2,282,901 16,995,241




The following are the exposures according to IFRS (9):

As of December 31, 2021

Individual

Real estate loans
Corporate

SME's

Governmental and Public Sector

As of December 31, 2020

Individual

Real estate loans
Corporate

SME's

Governmental and Public Sector

According to IFRS (9) as adopted by Central Bank of Jordan

Stage (1) Stage (2) Stage (3) Total
Direct Credit Expected Credit Interest in Direct Credit Expected Credit Interest in Direct Credit Expected Credit Interest in Direct Credit Expected Credit Interest in
Facilities Loss Suspense Facilities Loss Suspense Facilities Loss Suspense Facilities Loss Suspense
D D D D D D D D D D D D
779,565,332 4,016,954 30,940,041 2,990,363 - 30,522,499 22,472,623 4,102,597 841,027,872 29,479,940 4,102,597
748,559,244 1,237,043 132,472,608 5,508,400 - 16,894,804 5,958,515 2,471,153 897,926,656 12,703,958 2,471,153
799,254,383 10,950,904 251,230,166 28,714,382 - 62,386,168 45,846,859 7,707,710  1,112,870,717 85,512,145 7,707,710
149,748,862 1,145,780 55,651,694 2,549,592 - 21,116,063 10,149,583 2,638,906 226,516,619 13,844,955 2,638,906
431,243,828 - - - - - - - 431,243,828 - -
2,908,371,649 17,350,681 470,294,509 39,762,737 - 130,919,534 84,427,580 16,920,366  3,509,585,692 141,540,998 16,920,366
According to IFRS (9) as adopted by Central Bank of Jordan
Stage (1) Stage (2) Stage (3) Total
Direct Credit Expected Credit Interest in Direct Credit Expected Credit Interest in Direct Credit Expected Credit Interest in Direct Credit Expected Credit Interest in
Facilities Loss Suspense Facilities Loss Suspense Facilities Loss Suspense Facilities Loss Suspense
D D D D D D D D D D D D

658,357,568 3,753,181 22,088,956 1,534,974 - 28,323,459 20,113,075 4,120,410 708,769,983 25,401,230 4,120,410
658,216,737 1,114,516 106,458,733 7,276,536 - 18,460,780 5,945,750 2,935,998 783,136,250 14,336,802 2,935,998
933,059,189 11,535,717 195,780,692 18,790,244 - 53,292,394 36,743,565 7,655,932 1,182,132,275 67,069,526 7,655,932
134,369,267 2,354,413 49,014,632 1,359,772 - 18,168,765 8,960,871 2,282,901 201,552,664 12,675,056 2,282,901
212,514,816 - - - - - - - 212,514,816 - -
2,596,517,577 18,757,827 373,343,013 28,961,526 - 118,245,398 71,763,261 16,995,241  3,088,105,988 119,482,614 16,995,241
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The movement on the gross credit facilities and finanicng as of the year-end:

2021
Stage (1) Stage (2)
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage (3) Total
D D D D D D

Balance - beginning of the year 2,023,885,152 572,632,425 342,616,631 30,726,382 118,245,398 3,088,105,988

New exposures during the year 750,278,160 236,184,831 76,916,417 11,684,408 5,589,877 1,080,653,693

Exposures paid during the year (302,786,525) (43,112,125) (53,793,088) (2,796,948) (14,706,179) (417,194,865)
Transferred to stage (1) 59,840,822 786,149 (56,175,283) (786,102) (3,665,586) -

Transferred to stage (2) (136,611,567) (32,188,318) 140,087,906 32,796,228 (4,084,249) -

Transferred to stage (3) (6,554,449) (4,952,724) (25,374,658) (1,692,361) 38,574,192 -

The total impact on the volume of exposures as a result of

changing the classification between stages (17,996,645) (266,360) (12,736,601) (2,953,445) 584,624 (33,368,427)
Changes resulted from adjustments (133,333,419) (57,433,758) (6,477,291) (1,747,686) (1,219,260) (200,211,414)
Written off debts or transferred - - - - (8,399,283) (8,399,283)

Total balance at the end of the year 2,236,721,529 671,650,120 405,064,033 65,230,476 130,919,534 3,509,585,692
2020
Stage (1) Stage (2)
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage (3) Total
D D D D D D

Balance - beginning of the year 1,873,654,487 442,937,612 285,111,909 31,396,579 116,450,626 2,749,551,213

New exposures during the year 462,236,817 177,653,092 60,697,305 9,149,588 8,154,253 717,891,055

Exposures paid during the year (211,071,360) (25,168,082) (36,057,970) (1,845,521) (5,471,781) (279,614,714)
Transferred to stage (1) 61,109,447 11,524,200 (60,143,204) (11,487,602) (1,002,841) -

Transferred to stage (2) (121,613,716) (2,934,877) 122,689,573 3,991,464 (2,132,444) -

Transferred to stage (3) (10,947,692) (1,033,392) (11,245,382) (1,066,122) 24,292,588 -

The total impact on the volume of exposures as a result of

changing the classification between stages 88,053 (1,083,003) (12,539,614) (230,859) (221,511) (13,986,934)
Changes resulted from adjustments (29,570,884) (29,263,125) (5,895,986) 818,855 (4,109,527) (68,020,667)
Written off debts or transferred - - - - (17,713,965) (17,713,965)

Total balance at the end of the year 2,023,885,152 572,632,425 342,616,631 30,726,382 118,245,398 3,088,105,988
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The movement of the provision for expected credit losses as for the year-end:

Balance - beginning of the year

Impairment losses on the new exposures during the year
Recovered from impairment of the paid exposures during the year
Transferred to stage (1)

Transferred to stage (2)

Transferred to stage (3)

The total impact on the volume of exposures as a result of
changing the classification between stages

Effect on the provision resulting from adjustment
Impairment loss on the written-off exposures or transferred

Total ECL balance at the end of the year

Balance - beginning of the year

Impairment losses on the new exposures during the year

Recovered from impairment of the paid exposures during the year

Transferred to stage (1)

Transferred to stage (2)

Transferred to stage (3)

Effect on the impairment loss due to changes in the classifications between stages
Effect on the provision resulting from adjustment

Impairment loss on the written-off exposures or transferred

Total ECL balance at the end of the year

2021
Stage (1) Stage (2)
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage (3) Total
D D D D D D

17,865,958 891,869 28,807,402 154,124 71,763,261 119,482,614
5,282,840 637,405 7,893,105 260,432 8,677,923 22,751,705
(4,452,639) (77,533) (3,815,132) (3,324) (9,519,217) (17,867,845)
4,218,979 1,040 (2,664,820) (994) (1,554,205) -
(1,617,553) (44,479) 3,058,678 416,966 (1,813,612) -
(62,463) (27,577) (5,879,244) (10,405) 5,979,689 -
(3,679,207) (862) 1,662,786 850,535 14,513,401 13,346,653
(1,413,913) (171,184) 8,755,541 277,087 1,965,834 9,413,365

- - - - (5,585,494) (5,585,494)
16,142,002 1,208,679 37,818,316 1,944,421 84,427,580 141,540,998

2020
Stage (1) Stage (2)
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage (3) Total
D D D D D D

12,061,543 288,324 10,513,762 311,412 73,841,760 97,016,801
819,149 460,707 4,809,191 23,766 3,956,768 10,069,581
(1,403,753) (22,902) (1,957,837) (5,693) (2,138,657) (5,528,842)
1,529,902 150,096 (931,618) (138,482) (609,898) -
(479,895) (4,309) 896,460 373,869 (786,125) -
(74,000) (6,454) (1,045,503) (67,887) 1,193,844 -
(707,128) (141,221) 5,049,217 (290,102) 9,312,277 13,223,043
6,120,140 167,628 11,473,730 (52,759) 2,243,875 19,952,614

- - - - (15,250,583) (15,250,583)
17,865,958 891,869 28,807,402 154,124 71,763,261 119,482,614
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The distribution of total credit and financing facilities by the internal credit rating for Individuals is as follows:

Credit rating categories based on the Bank's internal system:

0N U BAWN

Not rated
Total

The movement on credit and financing facilities for Individuals is as follows:

Balance - beginning of the year
New exposures during the year
Settled exposures during the year
Transferred to stage (1)
Transferred to stage (2)

Transferred to stage (3)
Effect on the volume of exposures due to the changes between stages

Changes resulted from adjustments
Written off debts or transferred
Balance - End of the Year

Balance - beginning of the year
New exposures during the year
Settled exposures during the year
Transferred to stage (1)
Transferred to stage (2)
Transferred to stage (3)
Effect on the volume of exposures due to the changes between stages
Changes resulted from adjustments
Written off debts or transferred
Balance - End of the Year

2021 2020
Stage (1) Stage (1) Stage (2) Stage (2) Stage (3)
Individual Collective Individual Collective Individual Total Total
D D D D D D D
168,320 - - - - 168,320 805,977
873,341 - - - - 873,341 928,263
3,995,545 - 305,360 - - 4,300,905 3,552,051
7,979,874 - 139,568 - - 8,119,442 5,279,016
3,948,851 - 138,999 - - 4,087,850 4,527,185
2,592,535 - 16,429 - - 2,608,964 2,120,357
924,006 - 157,484 - - 1,081,490 401,706
- - - - 1,483,270 1,483,270 1,530,094
480,666,828 278,416,032 13,505,626 16,676,575 29,039,229 818,304,290 689,625,334
501,149,300 278,416,032 14,263,466 16,676,575 30,522,499 841,027,872 708,769,983
2021
Stage (1) Stage (2) Stage (3)
Individual Collective Individual Collective Individual Total
D D D D D D
431,648,647 226,708,921 18,486,881 3,602,075 28,323,459 708,769,983
148,664,693 125,350,364 1,039,363 1,268,194 2,781,619 279,104,233
(56,697,313) (20,884,918) (1,830,905) (316,884) (2,798,188) (82,528,208)
12,557,032 43,892 (10,473,167) (43,845) (2,083,912) -
(9,500,051) (14,567,611) 11,048,488 14,929,211 (1,910,037) -
(3,613,556) (3,471,017) (2,039,401) (789,648) 9,913,622 -
(1,687,996) (27,250) (1,741,085) (1,641,595) (83,480) (5,181,406)
(20,222,156) (34,736,349) (226,708) (330,933) (225,006) (55,741,152)
- - - - (3,395,578) (3,395,578)
501,149,300 278,416,032 14,263,466 16,676,575 30,522,499 841,027,872
2020
Stage (1) Stage (2) Stage (3)
Individual Collective Individual Collective Individual Total
D D D D D D
358,783,320 166,724,067 13,646,473 6,889,181 20,328,578 566,371,619
125,881,462 90,556,310 1,767,991 57,690 2,689,190 220,952,643
(35,134,266) (11,937,851) (951,957) (357,495) (1,924,211) (50,305,780)
6,733,506 2,802,432 (6,197,702) (2,781,317) (556,919) -
(13,185,590) (434,214) 13,535,216 983,786 (899,198) -
(4,123,729) (461,560) (2,868,952) (737,189) 8,191,430 -
(107,366) (369,951) (391,420) (119,213) 198,028 (789,922)
(7,198,690) (20,170,312) (52,768) (333,368) 355,672 (27,399,466)
- - - - (59,111) (59,111)
431,648,647 226,708,921 18,486,881 3,602,075 28,323,459 708,769,983

- 59 -



The movement on the provision for credit loss for Individuals credit facilities is as follows:

Balance - beginning of the year

Impairment losses on the new exposures during the year

Recovered from impairment of the paid exposures during the year

Transferred to stage (1)

Transferred to stage (2)

Transferred to stage (3)

Effect on impairment losses due to the changes in the classifications between stages
Effect on the provision resulting from adjustment

Impairment loss on written-off exposures or transferred

Total ECL balance at the end of the year

Balance - beginning of the year

Impairment losses on the new exposures during the year

Recovered from impairment of the paid exposures during the year

Transferred to stage (1)

Transferred to stage (2)

Transferred to stage (3)

Effect on impairment losses due to the changes in the classifications between stages
Effect on the provision resulting from adjustment

Impairment loss on written-off exposures or transferred

Total ECL balance at the end of the year

2021
Stage (1) Stage (2) Stage (3)
Individual Collective Individual Collective Individual Total
JD D JD D JD D

2,919,780 833,401 1,494,949 40,025 20,113,075 25,401,230
926,434 627,258 147,025 215,521 2,378,292 4,294,530
(1,269,641) (68,273) (152,793) (2,489) (2,051,610) (3,544,806)
1,973,002 726 (722,752) (680) (1,250,296) -
(65,749) (34,652) 1,078,593 381,479 (1,359,671) -
(22,192) (12,367) (156,904) (9,607) 201,070 -
(1,837,914) (618) (157,675) 628,928 6,158,196 4,790,917
212,466 (164,707) 164,802 41,941 398,312 652,814

- - - - (2,114,745) (2,114,745)

2,836,186 1,180,768 1,695,245 1,295,118 22,472,623 29,479,940

2020
Stage (1) Stage (2) Stage (3)
Individual Collective Individual Collective Individual Total
JD D JD D JD D

1,063,761 260,802 415,907 279,014 14,786,867 16,806,351
1,490,205 432,037 180,372 1,285 1,241,353 3,345,252

(104,684) (18,592) (44,559) (3,634) (1,152,213) (1,323,682)
530,346 129,873 (117,566) (119,420) (423,233) -
(44,008) (2,022) 297,445 355,813 (607,228) -
(21,649) (2,359) (98,495) (64,997) 187,500 -
(453,666) (123,674) 786,943 (348,133) 5,061,411 4,922,881
459,475 157,336 74,902 (59,903) 1,044,120 1,675,930

- - - - (2